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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS - CAMELS ANALYSIS

Rs in'000

Capital Adequacy 2074/075 2075/076 2076/077 2077/078 2078/079

Core Capital 881,952 977,804 1,039,571 1,218,266 1,280,265
Supplementary Capital 40,087 44,835 36,077 69,103 81,043
Capital Fund 922,039 1,022,638 1,075,648 1,287,368 1,361,307
Risk Weighted Assets 3,857,455 4,003,115 4,484,687 4,946,537 6,912,174
Capital Adequacy Ratio 23.90% 25.55% 23.98% 26.03% 19.69%
Core Capital to RWA 22.86% 24.43% 23.18% 24.63% 18.52%
Assets Quality 2074/075 2075/076 2076/077 2077/078 2078/079
Total Loan & Advances 3,134,797 3,830,377 4,149,104 4,764,874 5,574,114
Non Performing Loan 37,294 75,573 41,065 128,374 126,731
Loan Loss Provision 69,518 114,172 78,658 142,849 139,029
NPL to Total Loan & Advances 1.19% 1.97% 0.99% 2.69% 2.27%
LLP to Total Loan & Advances 2.22% 2.98% 1.90% 3.00% 2.49%
LLP to Total NPL 186.40% 151.08% 191.55% 111.27% 109.70%
Management Soundness 2074/075 2075/076 2076/077 2077/078 2078/079
Total Assets 4,736,793 5,282,038 6,386,087 7,215,194 9,209,575
Net Profit 44,850 64,119 102,533 149,506 71,147
Total Income 523,090 606,758 712,553 874,026 816,691
Total Expenses 419,488 509,610 564,458 650,244 713,605
# of Employee 88 92 129 162 167
# of Shares Outstanding 8,002 8,324 8,324 9,157 17,686
Earnings Per Employee 510 697 795 923 426
Earnings Per Share (Rs.) 5.60 7.70 12.32 16.33 4.02
Growth Rate in Assets 17.59% 11.51% 20.90% 12.98% 27.64%
Growth Rate in Deposits 15.31% 11.08% 25.93% 12.14% 17.98%
Growth Rate in Loan & Advances 18.18% 22.19% 8.32% 14.84% 16.98%
Growth Rate in Net Profit -58.62% 43% 59.91% 45.81% -52.41%
Earnings 2074/075 2075/076 2076/077 2077/078 2078/079
Net Interest Income 156,973 207,096 215,022 151,021 249,005
Operating Expenses 79,025 98,501 141,742 181,368 193,200
Non Interest Income 25,654 33,206 39,301 318,320 47,281
Earning Assets 4,494,127 4,811,048 4,918,509 5,099,021 6,114,554
Shareholders' Equity 901,829 1,066,935 1,087,359 1,279,601 1,317,103
Return on Equity 4.97% 6.01% 9.43% 11.68% 5.40%
Return on Assets 1.21% 1.21% 1.61% 2.07% 0.77%
Cost-Income Ratio 13.02% 16.23% 19.89% 20.75% 23.66%
Net Interest Margin 2.97% 3.92% 3.37% 2.09% 2.70%
Liquidity 2074/075 2075/076 2076/077 2077/078 2078/079
Total Deposits 3,722,875 4,135,375 5,207,487 5,839,924 6,890,130
Cash in Vault 44,138 38,535 54,832 58,503 65,397
CashatNR B 190,111 174,699 294,313 270,889 221,570
Cash at other Band & Fin. Inst. 1,127,037 980,671 769,405 334,147 540,440
Deposits to Assets Ratio 70.48% 78.29% 81.54% 80.94% 74.81%
C D Ratio (As per NRB Directives) 81.49% 74.91% 66.42% 81.59% 80.90%
Cash & Equivalent to Deposit Ratio 36.57% 28.87% 21.48% 11.36% 12.01%
Total Deposits to Core Capital (times) 3.81 4.23 5.01 4.79 5.38
Sensitivity 2074/075 2075/076 2076/077 2077/078 2078/079
Yield Rate 15.16% 14.53% 12.70% 11.41% 13.79%
Cost of Funds 9.44% 9.63% 8.30% 6.60% 9.35%
Net Spread 5.72% 4.90% 4.40% 4.81% 4.44%
Base Rate 9.38 12.34 11.25 9.65 12.19
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DETAIL CREDIT RISK ANALYSIS
Amount of Non Performing Loan
Category Gross Provision Net
Substandard 53,328,016 13,246,371 40,081,645
Doubtful 57,326,626 28,663,313 28,663,313
Loss 16,076,802 16,076,802 -
Total 126,731,444 57,986,486 68,744,958
Non Performing Loan Ratio
Gross Loan 5,574,113,702
Net Loan 5,435,084,689

Gross NPL to Gross Loan & Advances 2.27%
Net NPL to Net Loan & Advances 1.26%
Movement of Non Performing Loan

Particulars Opening Balance Closing Balance Movement
Non Performing Loan 128,374,459 126,731,444 (1,643,016)
Restructured - - -
Substandard 71,999,982 53,328,016 (18,671,966)
Doubtful 1,256,848 57,326,626 56,069,778
Loss 55,117,629 16,076,802 (39,040,827)

Werite off of Loans & Interest Suspense

Particulars Loan Amount Interest Suspense Provision Write back

Total Loan Write Off 682,851 - -
Movement of Loan Loss Provision

Particulars Opening Balance Closing Balance Movement
Pass 56,554,456 66,475,626 9,921,170
Watch List 12,548,061 14,566,901 2,018,840
Restructured -
Substandard 17,999,995 13,246,371 (4,753,625)
Doubtful 628,424 28,663,313 28,034,889
Loss 55,117,629 16,076,802 (39,040,827)
PG & Third Party Collateral - - -
Total Loan Loss Provision 142,848,566 139,029,013 (3,819,553)

Movement of Interest Suspense

Particulars Opening Balance Closing Balance Movement

Interest Suspense 38,053,759 38,559,825 506,066
Movements of Loan & Loan Loss Provision

Particulars Opening Balance Closing Balance Movement
Total Loan & Advances 4,764,873,811 5,574,113,702 809,239,891

Total Loan Loss Provision

142,848,566

139,029,013

(3,819,553)
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Pulchowk (Machagaa)
Lalitpur 20/8 Gha
P.O.B. 3102, Kathmandu, Nepal

Phone#(977-1)5421804/5429942
Fax: 977-1-5424804
Email: sundarmans@gmail.com

SUNDAR & CO.

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF RELIANCE FINANCE LIMITED

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Reliance Finance Limited. (“the Company”) which comprise the Statement of
Financial Position as at 320d Ashadh 2079 corresponding to 16 July 2022, Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the company as of 32°! Ashadh 2079 (16 July, 2022), and its financial performances,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) as
mentioned under section (b) of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Bank & Financial Institution Act and Company Act)

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the company
in accordance with the ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountant together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters
to be communicated in our report:

Key Audit Matters

Impairment of Loans and Advances to Customers
Total Loans and Advances to Customers: Rs.5,306,470 thousand as on 16" July 2022 (NPR. 4,542,480 thousand as on 15% July 2021)

Total Impairment: NPR. 134,340 thousand as on as on 16™ July 2022 (NPR. 138,613 thousand as on 15" July 2021)

Total accrued interest income is NPR. 650,091 thousand (NPR. 472,172 thousand in F/Y 2077/78)

Company’s policy for the allowance for impairment of loans and | We tested the Company’s operating effectiveness of key controls to
advances to customers have been based on the application of incurred | identify loss events and for determining the extent of provisioning
loss model. required against non- performing loans & dvances.

It involves significant management judgement and estimation. In | The testing of control included testing of:

| How our Audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

addition, assessment of allowances for impairment is important as|v" Controls over correct identification and classification of non —

carve out provides for higher of the incurred loss model or NRB’s performing loans and advances on time-based criteria

directive. v Control over accurate computation and recording of provisions

The carrying value of the loans & advances to customers can be|v"  Tested and checked the mode of calculation for the incurred loss

materially misstating if management’s judgement and estimation are in accordance with incurred loss model.

inappropriate. v Control over the monitoring of loans and advances to customers
with higher risk default

In addition to above, interest income of the company has been|v"  Control over the governance and approval process for provisions

recognized on accrual basis as calculated by the Company’s core
banking system and following the interest income recognition

including ongoing reassessment by the Company’s Management

Guidelines 2019 issued by NRB. Recognition of interest income
on non-performing loans and advances involves judgement and
estimation on calculating net realizable value of the loans & advances.
Therefore, considering the significance of the above matter to the
financial statements, we have identified this as a key audit matter.

In carrying out the substantive procedures, we selected sample of
loans & advances to customers and checked the repayment schedules
and tested the classification of non-performing loans based on overdue
period. Assessed the Management’s assumption and judgement
for classification of loans & advances based on repayment pattern,
documentation, assessment of control over mortgage value of loans &
advances, inspection and discussion with management.

We considered the impairment charges on loans & advances to
customers and interest recognition to be acceptable.
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Investment Valuation, Identification and Impairment

The Company's investment portfolio includes Treasury Bills,
Development Bonds, and quoted and unquoted equity instruments.
These instruments were valued in accordance with NFRS 9 and NRB
Directive 8.

Development bond, Treasury bill are measured at amortized cost.
Investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading are
measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income
(FVOCI).

Given there are different methods recommended for the treatment
of investments based on the nature of cash flow, the business model
adopted, complexity of calculation and the significance of amount
involved in such investments, same has been considered as Key Audit
matter.

Our audit approach regarding verification of process of investment
valuation, identification and impairment included:

v" Review of the Company’s investment and its valuation
having reference to NFRS and NRB Directive.
For investment valued at amortized cost, on test check
basis, we checked the effective interest rate (EIR) and
amortization schedule.
For the investments measured at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income (FVTOCT) for quoted investment,
we ensured that fair valuation done at the closing transaction
rate in NEPSE as on 16" July 2022.
Income and Bonus received have been verified through
DEMAT statement maintained by the Company wherever

v

applicable.

Investment Properties (Non-Companying Assets)

Investment Properties includes land, land and building acquired
by the Company as non-companying assets but not sold as on the
reporting date.

The Company holds investment property that has been acquired
through enforcement of security over the loans and advances.
Investment property is to be measured at fair value model or cost
model.

During the course of audit, we verified the Non-Banking Assets as per
Nepal Rastra Bank’s Directive.

This specific item has been found included under investment property
without being mentioning the mode of subsequent measurement.

Other Information

The Company’s Management is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Management Report, Report of the Board of Directors and Chairman’s statement but does not include the financial statement
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with the Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRS), and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the company or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:
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* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omission, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

 Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal controls.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Bank & Financial Institution Act and Company Act)
On examination of the financial statements as aforesaid, we report that:

a.  We have obtained all information and explanations asked for, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our examination.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company, in so far as appears from our examination
of those books of account and the financial statements dealt with by this report are prepared in conformity with the NFRS based
format prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank.

c. Inour opinion, the returns received from the respective company’s branches are adequate for the audit purpose, though the statements
are independently not audited.

d.  In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and from our examination of the
books of account of the company, we have not come across the cases where the Board of Directors or any member thereof or any
employee of the company has acted contrary to the provisions of the law relating to accounts or caused loss or damage to company
or committed any misappropriation or violated any directive of Nepal Rastra Bank.

e. In our opinion, the loans and advances are charged off as per the write off policy and with the approval of the authority concern.

f.  In our opinion, the business of the company has been conducted within its authority.

Sundar & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
UDIN # 230609CA00225NWexM
Date: 26™ Jestha 2080
9% June 2023
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Reliance Finance Limited
Statement of Financial Position
As at 32 Asar 2079
Particulars Note As at 32.03.2079| As at 31.03.2078

Assets

Cash and cash equivalent 4.1 605,836,478 392,650,589
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 221,569,845 270,888,959
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 43 - 100,030,548
Derivative financial instruments 4.4 - -
Other trading assets 4.5 - -
Loan and advances to B/Fis 4.6 356,003,243 321,563,245
Loans and advances to customers 4.7 5,172,130,038 4,403,866,936
Investment securities 4.8 2,479,377,272 1,622,815,765
Current tax assets 4.9 12,023,262 17,287,083
Investment in susidiaries 4.10 - -
Investment in associates 4.11 - -
Investment property 4.12 6,455,816 2,346,730
Property and equipment 4.13 328,064,960 61,001,836
Goodwill and Intangible assets 4.14 2,698,967 3,024,106
Deferred tax assets 4.15 1,208,230 -
Other assets 4.16 24,206,942 19,718,302
Total Assets 9,209,575,054 7,215,194,099
Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Instituions 4.17 206,958,100 175,405,219
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.18 863,500,000 -
Derivative financial instruments 4.19 - -
Deposits from customers 4.20 6,669,671,912 5,664,518,881
Borrowing 4.21 - -
Current Tax Liabilities 49 - -
Provisions 422 - -
Deferred tax liabilities 4.15 - 11,133,850
Other liabilities 4.23 152,341,873 84,535,488
Debt securities issued 4.24 - -
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25 - -
Total liabilities 7,892,471,885 5,935,593,438
Equity

Share capital 4.26 1,053,006,319 915,657,669
Share premium 1,140,765 1,140,765
Retained earnings 75,912,754 161,622,050
Reserves 4.27 187,043,330 201,180,176
Total equity attributable to equity holders 1,317,103,169 1,279,600,660
Non-controlling interest

Total equity 1,317,103,169 1,279,600,660
Total liabilities and equity 9,209,575,054 7,215,194,099
Contingent liabilities and commitment 4.28 84,522,918 178,181,604
Net assets value per share 125.08 139.75

Note 4.1 to 4.28 are integral part of Statement of Financial Position

Samaj Prakash Shrestha Kush Prasad Mally

Act. Chief Executive Officer Chairman
Ravi Krishna Shrestha Tulsi Prasad Baral Upendra Bahadur Karki
Director Director Director

Date:26 Jestha, 2080, Place: Kathmandu

Sur Krishna Vaidya
Director

Sweta Kakshapati Shakya
Director

Anila Shrestha, FCA

Sundar & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Binod Kumar Tandukar
Director
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Reliance Finance Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended on 32 Ashad 2079
Particulars Note Current Year Previous Year

Interest income 4.29 769,409,676 555,705,995
Interest expense 4.30 520,405,063 404,684,930
Net interest income 249,004,613 151,021,065
Fee and commission income 431 38,742,462 40,479,329
Fee and commission expense 4.32 - -
Net fee and commission income 38,742,462 40,479,329
Net interest, fee and commission income 287,747,075 191,500,395
Net trading income 4.33 - -
Other operating income 4.34 4,719,169 277,840,946
Total operating income 292,466,245 469,341,341
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 4.35 (3,819,553) 64,190,783
Net operating income 296,285,798 405,150,558
Operating expense
Personnel expenses 4.36 101,524,815 106,567,258
Other operating expenses 4.37 61,383,086 62,897,235
Depreciation & Amortisation 4.38 30,291,646 11,903,804
Operating Profit 103,086,251 223,782,262
Non operating income 4.39 - -
Non operating expense 4.40 - -
Profit before income tax 103,086,251 223,782,262
Income tax expense 4.41

Current Tax 32,000,924 66,356,086

Deferred Tax (61,376) 7,920,024
Profit for the period 71,146,704 149,506,151
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 71,146,704 149,506,151
Non-controlling interest
Profit for the period 71,146,704 149,506,151
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share 6.76 16.33
Diluted earnings per share 6.76 16.33

Note 4.29 to 4.41 are integral part of Statement of Profit & Loss

Samaj Prakash Shrestha
Act. Chief Executive Officer

Kush Prasad Mally
Chairman

Ravi Krishna Shrestha
Director

Tulsi Prasad Baral
Director

Upendra Bahadur Karki
Director

Date:26 Jestha, 2080, Place: Kathmandu

Sur Krishna Vaidya

Director

Sweta Kakshapati Shakya

Director

Director

Anila Shrestha, FCA
Sundar & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Binod Kumar Tandukar
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Reliance Finance Limited
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended on 32 Asar 2079

Particulars

Note

Current Year

Previous Year

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Gain/(loss) from investments in equity instruments measured at
fair value
Gain/(loss) on revaluation
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans
Income tax relating to above items
Net other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge
Exchange gain/(losses) arising from translating financial assets of
foreign operation
Income tax relating to above items
Net other comprehensive income that are or may be reclassified
to profit or loss
¢) Share of other comphrehensive income of associate accounted

as per equity method

71,146,704

(40,935,679)

12,280,704
(28,654,975)

149,506,151

52,039,039

(15,611,712)
36,427,327

Other comprehensive income for the period, net of income tax

(28,654,975)

36,427,327

Total comprehensive income for the period

42,491,728

185,933,479

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank
Non-controlling interest

Total comprehensive income for the period

42,491,728

42,491,728

185,933,479

185,933,479

Samaj Prakash Shrestha
Act. Chief Executive Officer

Kush Prasad Mally
Chairman

Tulsi Prasad Baral
Director

Ravi Krishna Shrestha
Director

Upendra Bahadur Karki
Director

Date:26 Jestha, 2080, Place: Kathmandu

Sur Krishna Vaidya
Director

Sweta Kakshapati Shakya

Director

Anila Shrestha, FCA
Sundar & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Binod Kumar Tandukar
Director
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Reliance Finance Limited
Statement of Cash Flow
For the year ended on 32 Asar 2079
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Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest received

Fees and other income received

Divided received

Receipts from other operating activities

Interest paid

Commission and fees paid

Cash payment to employees

Other expense paid

756,561,952
38,742,462

(520,405,063)

(111,833,440)
(61,383,086)

547,859,924
40,479,329

52,640,999
(404,684,930)

(131,431,954)
(62,897,235)

Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities 101,682,825 41,966,135
(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 49,319,113 23,424,227
Placement with bank and financial institutions 100,030,548 (100,030,548)
Other trading assets

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions (34,439,998) 74,288,255
Loans and advances to customers (764,443,549) (721,588,850)
Other assets (47,094,520) 47,522,008
Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities

Due to bank and financial institutions 31,552,881 137,665,442
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 863,500,000 (110,900,000)
Deposit from customers 1,005,153,031 605,671,627
Borrowings

Other liabilities 56,672,535 4,428,317
Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid 1,361,932,865 2,446,612
Income taxes paid (26,737,103) (68,785,887)
Net cash flow from operating activities 1,335,195,763 (66,339,275)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment securities

(856,561,506)

(630,696,115)

Receipts from sale of investment securities 728,904 209,389,954

Purchase of property and equipment (296,657,223) (24,276,794)

Receipt from the sale of property and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets 325,139 (379,906)

Receipt from the sale of intangible assets

Purchase of investment properties (4,109,085) (725,857)

Receipt from the sale of investment properties

Interest received

Dividend received 3,990,265 2,580,472

Net cash used in investing activities (1,152,283,506) (444,108,245)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipt from issue of debt securities

Repayment of debt securities

Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities

Repayment of subordinated liabilities

Receipt from issue of shares 137,348,650 83,241,606

Dividends paid (7,228,876) (4,381,137)

Interest paid

Other receipt/payment (99,846,142)

Net cash from financing activities 30,273,632 78,860,469

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 213,185,889 (431,587,051)

Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents 392,650,589 824,237,640

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held

Closing Cash and Cash Equivalnet as at Asar end 605,836,478 392,650,589

Samaj Prakash Shrestha Kush Prasad Mally Sur Krishna Vaidya Anila Shrestha, FCA
Act. Chief Executive Officer Chairman Director Sundar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Ravi Krishna Shrestha Tulsi Prasad Baral Upendra Bahadur Karki Sweta Kakshapati Shakya Binod Kumar Tandukar
Director Director Director Director Director

Date:26 Jestha, 2080, Place: Kathmandu
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Reliance Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended on 32 Asar 2079

1 Reporting entity
Reliance Finance Limited (hereinafter referred to as "Finance Co.") is class "C" licenced financial institution licenced by
Nepal Rastra Bank. Finance Co. is now operating with corporate office at Pradarshani Marg, Kathmandu. Finance Co. has
21 branch offices (excluding Head Office).

Finance Co. was incorporated under Companies Act 2063 on 23 Ashad 2066 as public limited company. Finance Co. is listed
with Nepal Stock Exchange. Finance Co. has obtained PAN (303763691) from Inland Revenue Office.

Finance Co. offers comprehensive banking services within the scope of provisions of Banking and Financial Institutions Act

2073.

2 Basis of Preparation
2.1 Statement of Compliance
The financial statements are prepared in line with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (to the extent of carve out
pronounced by ICAN, as stated in note 2.1.1) as issued by Accounting Standards Board Nepal and pronounced by The
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN). The financial statements were prepared in accordance with the
Directives issued by Nepal Rastra Bank as well as Nepal Accounting Standards.

Nepal Rastra Bank issued circular for reporting format of financial institutions in line with NFRS on November 30,
2017 along with treatment of certain items in the specified reserves. The financial statements are prepared in line with
the stated circular, accordingly, are in compliance with regulatory requirement of Nepal Rastra Bank. The financial
statements also comply the requirements of Companies Act 2063 and policy, procedures and directives of Securities
Board of Nepal.

2.1.1 Use of Carve-out
ICAN has provided carve out on specific areas for alternative treatment of the items of financial statements
required as per NFRS. Based on such, Finance Co. has used following carve out for preparation and presentation
of financial statements in line with NFRS.

a)

b)

©)

Impairment Loss on Loan and Advances

As per para 63 of NAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, impairment loss is
calculated on incurred loss model. The carve out has allowed to use higher amount of loss calculated as per
para 63 or as per NRB Directives 2/076. Finance Co. has used this carve out and presented the impairment
loss calculated as per NRB Directives and disclosed the amount of impairment loss as per NAS 39.

Effective Interest Rate

As per the definition of effective interest rate (EIR) as per para 9 of NAS 39, all the initial points paid or
received is required to be considered for calculation of EIR and the same EIR is used to calculate interest
on loans and advances. As per the carve out, if calculation of EIR is impracticable or immaterial, then such
could be ignored. Finance Co. has used the carve out and has not considered initial points paid or received
on loans to be part of EIR, rather such amount has been accounted as income on accrual basis.

Interest income on amortized loan after impairment recognition

As per para AG63 of NAS 39, Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written
down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is thereafter recognised using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The carve out
provides that interest income can be calculated on gross carrying amount of loan. Finance Co. has used the
stated carve out in preparing the financial statements.

2.2 Reporting Period and Approval of Financial Statements

2.2.1 Reporting Period
The reporting period for this financial statements is fiscal year 2078-79, starting from 1 Shrawan 2078 and ending
on 32 Ashad 2079. Financial information of following period/dates are provided on the financial statements.
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2.2.2 Approval of Financial Statements
The financial statements are authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 Jestha 2080 meeting No.305
The financial statements are presented for approval to the upcoming annual general meeting of shareholders.

Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupee, which is also the functional currency of Finance Co. Figures
are rounded off to nearest Rupee, accordingly, minor rounding off error may exist.

Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates and judgments. It also requires management to exercise judgment in
the process of applying the company’s accounting policies. The company makes certain estimates and assumptions
regarding the future events. Estimates and judgments are continuously evaluated based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. In
the future, actual result may differ from these estimates and assumptions. The estimates and assumptions that might
result in adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are on the following
components:

1. Classification of financial assets
Classification of financial assets into Amortized cost or at fair value (either through profit or loss or through other
comprehensive income) depends upon the intention of management whether to hold or trade the assets. At the
reporting dates, the classification been based on the intention of management on particular group of financial
assets. The classification of financial assets may change based on the economic circumstances and intention of
management.

2. Fair value of financial assets
Fair value of financial statements is determined on three levels on the basis of available market on reporting date
and the measurement may change depending on available market circumstances.
The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in an active market is the closing price on the reporting dates.
Whenever the instruments are not actively traded in active market, they are determined using other techniques
considering the observable market inputs to the extent possible.
The Finance Co. measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy as provided in NFRS 13.
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Finance
Co. can access at the measurement date.
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Company has used its own data (accounting
value) and considered if there exists factors that would otherwise result in changes to the book value of assets or

liabilities.

3. Impairment loss on financial assets
Impairment loss on financial assets is provided on the higher of loan loss provision as per NRB Directive 2078 and
para 63 of NAS 39. On calculating loss as per para 63, estimates are made on amount of loans that are considered

to require individual assessment, grouping of loans for collective assessment, parameters for assessing impairment,
future cash flow estimates, historical data on similar types of loan or group of loans.

4. Useful life and salvage value of property and equipment
Management reconsiders the economic useful life and salvage value of property and equipment on each reporting
dates based on the information available on such dates.

5. Impairment loss of non financial assets
Impairment loss is calculated if carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount. For recoverable amount, value
in use is estimated and an estimated discount rate is used to arrive the present value of value in use.

6. Current Tax and Deferred tax
Significant management judgment is required to arrive at the figure of current tax and deferred tax, based upon the
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The Finance Co.
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
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7.

Employee benefit obligations

Judgment is required to determine the estimated liability that shall arise on part of accumulated leave of staff
which is generally paid out on retirement or termination of employment. Valuation of such is done by qualified
actuary using assumption like interest rate, rate of increase in annual compensation, remaining service period etc.
Factors considered may change depending on market changes or legal changes which are beyond the control of
the company. Considering the cost benefit analysis, Finance Co. has not done actuarial valuation and carried the
liability at book value due to immaterial amount.

Impairment of Loan and Advances
The Loan and advances not settled till asar end 2079 has to be considered for down grading assets quality.

Changes in Accounting Policies

The financial statements are prepared as per NFRS. NFRS 1 requires the financial statements of previous period be
prepared in line with NFRS. This has resulted in changes in accounting policies. The changes in policies as well as
impact on statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and statement
of cash flow is separately presented.

New Standards in Issue but not Yet Effective

The financial statements are prepared in line with NFRS issued on 2013. NFRS has not been revised thereafter and
accordingly, accounting standards issued by International Accounting Standard Boards and revision thereof have not
been considered.

New Standards and Interpretation not Adopted
Finance Co. has adopted all the applicable interpretation pronounced by ICAN.

Discounting
Discounting has been applied whenever the assets and liabilities are of non-current in nature and the impact of
discounting is material.

Going Concern
The financial statements are prepared on the assumption that Finance Co. is going concern entity.

Standalone Financial Statements
The presented financial statements is the standalone financial statement of Finance Co. Finance Co. does not have
subsidiary, accordingly, preparation of consolidated financial statement is not required.

Quality of Loan Upgradation with Retrospective Effect
"Company’s loan quality as of Poush end 2079, the audit finalization date, has been upgraded due to the repayment
of overdue loan installment/ loan regularization as per NRB Unified Directives,2078,n0.2/078. The consequential
effect of such loan upgradation has caused reduction of Loan Loss Provision (LLP) amount by Rs. 31,627 thousand
with increment of profit by same amount.Such increment of profit amount has been recognized by the company
considering the profit recognizable as of Ashad end 2079."

3 Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies adopted by Finance Co. while preparing financial statements are as follows:

Note No.  Accounting Policy Information Note No.
3.1  Basis of Measurement

3.2  Basis of Consolidation

3.3 Cash and Cash Equivalent 4.1

3.4  Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

3.5  Trading Assets 4.5

3.6  Derivative Assets and Liabilities 4.4

3.7  Property and Equipment 4.13

3.8  Goodwill Intangible assets 4.14

3.9  Investment Property 4.12

3.10 Income tax 4.9

3.11 Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities 4.17,4.20,4.24,4.25
3.12 Provisions 4.22
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3.13 Revenue 4.29,4.31,4.33,4.34,4.39
3.14 Interest expense 4.30
3.15 Employees Benefits 4.23
3.16 Leases
3.17 Foreign currency translation
3.18 Financial guarantee and loan commitment
3.19 Share capital and reserves 4.26,4.27
3.20 Earning per share including diluted
3.21 Segment reporting 5.4
3.22 Events after reporting date
3.1 Basis of Measurement
Financial statements are prepared on historical cost convention except for the following material items:
Particulars Measurement Basis
Investment in shares and mutual fund schemes Fair value
Non-banking assets Lower of Market Value or Outstanding Receivable
at the date of booking NBA
Loans to employees Amortized cost
Property and equipment, investment property and intangible assets Deemed cost as fair value
3.2 Basis of consolidation
Finance Co. does not have subsidiary companies, accordingly, consolidation of financial statements is not a
requirement.
33 Cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalent comprises of cash, demand deposit and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. In
general, short term investments with original maturity of up to three months are considered as cash equivalent. Cash
and cash equivalent are presented at amortized cost on the financial statements.
3.4  Financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets is any assets that is cash, equity instrument of another entity or any contractual right to receive cash
or financial assets of another entity.

Financial liability is any liability with contractual obligation to deliver cash or other financial assets to another
entity.

3.4.1 Recognition
The Finance Co. initially recognises financial assets or financial liability on the date of which the Finance Co.
becomes party to the contractual arrangement.

3.4.2 Classification and Measurement
Financial Assets: The classification and measurement of financial assets depend on how these are managed
i.e. the Finance Co.'s business model and their contractual cash-flow characteristics. Based on these factors,
financial assets are classified on following three categories:
i) At Amortized Cost
ii) At Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVPL)
iii) At Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

i) At amortized cost: Financial assets at amortized cost are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments for which the Finance Co. has intent and ability to hold till maturity. They
are initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to
initial recognition, such financial assets are measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate
method less any impairment losses.

ii) At fair value through profit or loss: Financial assets are classified at fair value through profit or
loss if the Finance Co. manages such instruments and makes purchases and sales decisions based on
its fair value. Attributable transaction costs and changes in fair value are taken to profit or loss.

iii) At fair value through other comprehensive income: Financial assets at FVOCI are non-derivative
financial assets that are not classified in any of the above category. Financial assets at FVOCI are
measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets are measured at fair value,
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as far as such fair value is available, and changes therein are recognized in other comprehensive
income and presented in the fair value reserve in equity. Finance Co. has opted to classify the
investment made in shares and mutual fund schemes as financial assets at FVOCI on initial
recognition.

Financial Liabilities: Finance Co. classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantee and loan
commitments, as measured at amortised cost or fair value through profit or loss. Financial liability is measured
initially at fair value, or an item not at fair value through profit or loss, at transactions costs that are directly attributable
to its acquisition or issue.

3.4.3 De-recognition

Financial Assets
Financial assets are partially or fully de-recognized in any of the following condition:
- termination of contractual rights to cash flow

- upon transfer of contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and rewards of
the ownership of the financial assets are transferred or in which the Finance Co. neither transfer nor retains
substantially all of the risk and rewards of the ownership and it does not retain control of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial assets, the difference between the carrying amount of the assets (or the carrying
amount allocated to the portion of the assets derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration received
(including any new assets obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in OCI is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities
Upon settlement or termination of any liability related to financial liability, financial liability is de-recognized. The
difference between carrying amount and settlement amount is accounted through statement of profit or loss.

3.4.4 Determination of fair value

3.4.5

Fair is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is initially considered based on quoted rate
where the assets or liabilities are principally transaction, in the absence of which the most advantageous
market is the active market.

When available, the Finance Co. measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active
market for that instrument. The market is regarded as active if transactions for the assets or liability take place
with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Finance Co. uses valuation techniques that maximise the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique
incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

Fair value of non-financial assets like property & equipment, investment property and intangible assets are
considered the deemed cost of such assets in line with NFRS 1.

Fair Value Hierarchy
Assets and liabilities carried at fair value or for which fair values are disclosed have been classified into three
levels according to the observability of the significant inputs used to determine the fair values.

Level 1: Fair value is determined based on quoted price of financial instruments in active market.

Level 2: Fair value is determined based on quoted price of similar financial instruments within consideration
to significant observable inputs.

Level 3: Fair value is determined used using other method as the inputs for valuation are unobservable
inputs for the asset or liability. Finance Co. has used its own data (accounting value) and considered if there
exists factors that would otherwise result in changes to the book value of assets or liabilities for this level of
valuation.

Impairment
At each reporting date, the Finance Co. assesses whether there is objective evidence that financial assets are
impaired. The financial assets or a group of financial assets is impaired when objective evidence demonstrates
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that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that the loss has an impact on the
future cash flows of the asset that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer

- default or delinquency by a borrower

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Finance Co. on terms that the Finance Co. would not consider
otherwise;

- indication that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy

- the disappearance of an active market for a security; or

- observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or
issuers in the group or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the group.

In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its net worth below
its book value is objective evidence of impairment.

The Finance Co. considers evidences of impairment for loans and advances and investment securities at both
specific asset and at collective level. All individually significant loans and advances and investment securities
are assessed for specific impairment. Those found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed
for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Loans and advances and investment securities
that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together loans and
advances and investment securities with similar risk characteristics.

In assessing the collective impairment, the Finance Co. uses the statistical modelling of historic trends of the
probability of default, the time of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred and makes an adjustment if the
current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or lesser than is
suggested by historic trends. Default rates, loss rates and expected timing of future recoveries are regularly
benchmarked against the actual outcomes to ensure that they remain appropriate.

Impairment losses on assets measured at amortised cost are calculated as difference between the carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the assets original effective
interest rate.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account against loans and
receivables or investment securities. Interest on the impaired assets continues to be recognised through the
unwinding of the discount. If an event occurring after the impairment was recognised causes the amount of
impairment loss to decrease, then the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss (through
OCI for such investments measured at fair value through OCI on which there exists fair value reserve).

The Finance Co. writes off a loan or an investment security, either partially or in full and any related allowance
for impairment losses, when the Finance determines that there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

Amortized cost measurement

The 'amortised cost' of a financial asset and financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or
financial liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between initial amount recognised and the
maturity amount minus any reduction for impairment.

Effective Interest Method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial
liability (or group of financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest
expenses over the relevant period.

Trading assets
Trading assets are those assets that the Finance Co. acquires or incurs principally for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term, or holds as part of a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit or position

taking.

Derivatives assets and derivative liabilities
Derivative assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value on the contract date and are subsequently

26



M Reliance Finance Limited

(R Feamew wzaww fafwes

3.7

remeasured to fair value at each reporting date. The changes in value of instruments are accounted through profit or
loss.

Property and Equipment
Non-financial tangible assets that are held for service providing to customers and for administrative use of the
Finance Co. are classified as Property and Equipment.

Recognition
Property and Equipment are recognized in books whenever it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with such assets will flow to the entity and the amount of assets can be reliably measured.

Measurement

At initial recognition, items of property and equipment are measured at cost. Cost includes the purchase price and other
directly attributable costs as well as the estimated present value of any future unavoidable costs of dismantling and
removing items. The corresponding liability is recognized within provisions. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow in to the Finance Co.
Ongoing repair and maintenance are expensed off as incurred.

Subsequent to the initial measurement, there is option to measure the assets either on cost or on revaluation. Finance
has measured all items at cost on subsequent measurement. On transition to NFRS, the Finance Co. has elected to
continue with the carrying value of all of its property and equipment measured as per the previous NAS and use that
carrying value as the deemed cost as fair value in line with provisions of NFRS 1.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Assets not capitalized
Items of property and equipment with original cost up to Rs. 5,000 are directly accounted as expenses.

Capital Work in Progress

Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in the assets under capital work in progress (CWIP). At the point
when an asset is operating at management’s intended use, the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment and depreciation commences.

Salvage Value
The Finance Co. has assessed the salvage value of all property, plant and equipment considering the expected
realizable value on the end of life of such assets.

Depreciation
Depreciation is charged upon the assets is available for use and does not cease until the assets is disposed off,
classified as held for sale or ceases to generate economic benefits.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation on assets under construction does not commence until they are
complete and available for use. Depreciation is provided on all other items of property and equipment so as to write-
off their carrying value over the expected useful economic lives.

Items of property and equipment are depreciated on Straight Line Method over their useful life.

Management of the Finance Co. has assessed useful life and salvage value of property and equipment, as follows:

Items Estimated useful life (years) Salvage Value
Building 50 5%

Leasehold Properties Lease period 0

Computer & Accessories 5 0

Vehicle 10 25%

Furniture & Fixture 7 3%

Machinery 10 5%
Equipment & Others 3-5 0%
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Goodwill and Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition financial institutions when the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred exceed the amount of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired. If the amount of the identifiable
assets and liabilities acquired is greater, the difference is recognised immediately in the Statement of profit or loss.

Goodwill is allocated to cash generating units (CGU) at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management process. Impairment testing is performed annually, and whenever there is an indication that CGU may
be impaired. If the present value of expected cash inflows is less than carrying amount, impairment loss is recognized
and accounted through Statement of Profit or Loss. Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Acquired Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are recognized whenever the cost of assets can be reliably measured, by the past experience it is
demonstrated Finance Co. has control over such assets for the specified period and it is probable that future economic
benefits could be derived from such assets. Finance has followed NAS 38 for accounting of intangible assets.

In the financial statements, software are presented as intangible assets.

Computer Software
Computer software are capitalised on the basis of the purchase cost of software or license and costs incurred to bring
it to use. Cost of internally developed software includes directly attributable costs.

Intangible assets are amortized over the period of its estimated use, or incase of licenses, over the period of contractual
right of use. Whenever there is no specific life or license period, such software are amortized over the period of five
years.

At each reporting date, impairment test of intangible assets is done in order to oversee whether the carrying amount
exceeds recoverable amount. Impairment loss is charged to Statement of Profit or Loss.

On transition to NFRS, the Finance Co. has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangible assets
measured as per the previous NAS and use that carrying value as the deemed cost as fair value in line with provisions

of NFRS 1.

Investment Property
Investment property is land and building held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both but
not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the supply of services or for administrative purpose.

Useful life of building held as investment property is considered to be same as that of property and equipment (i.e.
50 years) with 5% salvage value.

Income tax
Income tax expenses include current tax, deferred tax and any adjustments recognised in the period for current tax of
prior periods.

Current Tax

Current tax is the amount of income tax payable in respect of taxable profit. This is calculated as per the provisions
of Income Tax Act with the effective tax rate for current period. Taxable profit differs from the profit reported in
the statement of profit or loss, because some item of income or expenses are taxable or deductible in different years
or may never be taxable or deductible. Income tax rate applicable for Finance Co. is 30% (previous year rate was
30%).

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is calculated using balance sheet approach on temporary differences between tax base of assets and
liabilities and carrying amount in the financial statements. Deferred tax is calculated using known future tax rate on
each reporting date.

Deferred tax is recognized when it is probable that future taxable profit will be available to adjust the impact of

temporary differences. Changes in deferred tax over period is recognized as deferred tax income/expenses in
Statement of Profit or Loss.

In line with NRB Directives, deferred tax reserve is created to the amount equal to deferred tax assets and presented
as part of regulatory reserve from current year.
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Income tax on items of OCI
Income tax arising on the items of other comprehensive income is charged to statement of OCI itself.

Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities
Deposit are financial liabilities and are generally repayable on demand except fixed period deposit accepted by
Finance Co. from its customers.

The Finance Co. borrows money by issuing debt securities and subordinated debt. The borrowing is acknowledged
or evidenced by issue of a negotiable instrument. The negotiable instrument can be certificate of deposit, commercial
paper or debt note. Subordinated debt is issued to meet the capital requirements at Finance Co. level and to supply
the capital to various operations. This debt generally consists of negotiable instruments and is usually listed on
exchanges providing an active secondary market for the debt.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provision is a liability with uncertain timing and event. Provision is recognised if as a result of a past event, the
group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at the pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are i) possible obligations arising from past events whose existence
will be confirmed on happening or not happening or uncertain future events not wholly within the control of Finance
Co., or ii)a present obligation arising from past events but are not recognized because outflow of resources to settle
may not be required or such amount can not be reliably estimated.

Contingent liabilities are separately disclosed in financial statements.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized in line with NAS 18 Revenue when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the entity and these benefits can be measured reliably.

3.13.1 Interest income
Interest, in general, is recognized using effective interest rate on the particular assets. Finance Co. has opted
to use the carve-out mentioned in Note 2.1.1 (¢) and continued to use the actual interest rate to account for
interest income. Interest income has been booked for all interest received during the year as well as on those
loans having collective impairment as per NRB Directives less than 25%,, in line with circular issued by
NRB. Interest on those loan with impairment of 25% or more have not been recognized.

Finance Co., in general, generates interest income from loan to customers, investment in debt securities and
call deposits.

Further,Interest income on Loan abd Advances is reconized as per the guideline on recognition of interest
income, 2019 issued by NRB.

SN Particulars FY 2078-79
1 | Total AIR-Current Year 51,769,043.48
2 | Interest Recognition Suspended Non Performing Loan 7,347,082.87
3 | Accured Income Recognized for Performing Loan 44,421,960.61
4 | Interest Received till Shrawan 15 13,209,219.00
5 | Accured Income Recognized for Performing Loan(After 15dyas Interest 31,212,741.61
Received)
6 | Upto Previous Year Income Recognized- transferred to regulatory reserve 18,460,775.96
7 | AIR(Net) to be transferred to regulatory reserve this year 1,203,251.40
8 | Total Amount to regulatory reserve 19,664,027.36

3.13.2 Fee and commission income
Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been provided or
significant act performed. the fees and commission income and expense that are integral to the effective
interest rate on the financial assets and financial liability are included in the measurement of the effective
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interest rate. Finance Co. has opted to use carve-out as mentioned in Note 2.1.1 (c) on this matter and
accounted all realized fee and commission income upfront.

Commission on guarantees issued that are for more than one year are immediately accounted as income. If
the period of guarantee is more than one year, then proportionate amount of fee is accounted as income.

3.13.3 Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established i.e. dividend is approved by
general meeting of companies.

Dividend income if related to period earlier than the date of acquisition of shares and it amount related to
pre and post acquisition could be segregated, then the pre-acquisition period dividend is adjusted to cost of
investment.

3.13.4 Net trading income
Income derived from buying/selling of assets and liabilities classified as for trading purpose are accounted
as net trading income. Gain and loss on trading assets and liabilities are recognized on mark to market basis
and not on realization basis.

3.13.5 Other Operating Income
Income other than interest, fees & commission and trading income are accounted as other operating income.
This primarily comprises of changes in foreign exchange rate, dividend income, gain on disposal of non-
financial assets etc.

Interest expenses
Interest on deposit accepted from customer and borrowings of the Finance Co. are accounted on accrual basis.

Employees Benefits

Employee expenses includes the amount paid to employees of Finance Co. in respect of their service. Payment in
respect of services are for the current service and long term benefits. Long term benefits are in the form of defined
contribution plan and defined benefit plan. Expenses under defined contribution plan are accounted as they incur and
on defined benefit plan as per the actuarial valuation.

Employee benefits are accounted using normal calculation method. Actuarial valuation has not been done considering
the cost benefit and materiality impact.

Short term employee benefits include salary, allowance, encashment of unused leave, provident fund, annual
bonus based on profit of the Finance Co., subsidized loans etc. These are provided as the services are rendered by the
employees and measured on undiscounted amount of payment made.

Long term employee benefits include include accumulated leave not encashed during service period. These are
generally paid on retirement or termination of service of the employee.

Gratuity is provided as per Labour Act 2074 due to which actuarial valuation is not required. Accumulated leave is
provided as per Employee Service Regulation of the Finance Co. and on book value basis. Finance Co. believes that
the impact of actuarial valuation will not be material as the amount of accumulated leave itself is not material and the
benefit of actuarial valuation will not be more than the cost involved on such expert valuation.

Leases

Company has obtained all office spaces on lease for varying periods. Lease payments are either on monthly or
quarterly basis. Lease accounting has been prepared according to NFRS-16 Lease for first time. As per NFRS 16
para C2, the date of initial application is the beginning of the annual reporting period in which an entity first applies
this Standard. Accordingly, the opening date of current fiscal year is the initial application date of this standard. In
line with para C8 (a) and (b) (ii), company has measured lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application and right of use assets an
amount equal to the lease liability relating to that lease recognised in the statement of financial position. In such
scenario, Company shall not be required to restate comparative information.
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Assets/Liabilities reconized as per NFRS 16
Particulars Amount(NPR)
Right of use Assets(ROU) 72,681,598.42
Accumulated Depreciation-ROU (15,631,537.12)
Net Right of use Assets(ROU) 57,050,061.30
Lease payment during the year 15,625,123.73

3.17

3.18

3.19

Foreign Currency Transaction
Transaction in foreign currencies are recorded in the functional currency at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date
of transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated into the functional
currency at the rate of exchange prevailing on that date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the
difference between the amortised cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the year, adjusted for effective
interest and payment during the year and the amortised cost in the foreign currency translated at the rate of exchange
at the reporting date.

Non monetary assets and liabilities that measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional
currency at the rate of exchange prevailing at the date on which the fair value is determined. Non monetary items that
are measured based on historical cost in the foreign currency are translated using the rate of exchange on the date of
transactions. The resulting exchange gain or loss differences are generally recognised in Profit or Loss.

Financial guarantee and loan commitment

Financial guarantees are contract that require the Fund to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss
that incurs because a specified debtors fails to make payment when it is due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Loan commitments' are firm commitments to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.

Liabilities arising from financial guarantees or commitments to provide a loan at a below -market interest rate are
initially measured at fair value and the initial fair value is amortised over the life of the guarantee or the commitment.
The liability is subsequently carried at the higher of this amortised amount and the present value of any expected
payment to settle the liability when a payment under the contract has become probable. Financial guarantees and
commitments to provide a loan at a below market interest rate included within other liabilities.

Share Capital and Reserves

3.19.1 Share Capital
Equity share capital is financial instruments issued by the company only to the extent that they do not meet
the definition of financial liabilities.
All the issued shares are paid up and are listed with Nepal Stock Exchange for the purpose of trading by
shareholders. All shares have right to vote on the basis of no. of shares held. Finance Co. does not have shares
of other kind other than ordinary shares.

3.19.2 Reserves
Finance Co. has created various types of reserves as part of regulatory requirement.

a) General Reserve
General reserve is the statutory reserve. In this reserve, the amount transformed from appropriation
of net profit according to the Banks and Financial Institutions Act, 2073 shall be included. No type
of dividend (cash or bonus share) shall be distributed from the amount in general/statutory reserve.
Approval of NRB shall be required in order to use the amount in this reserve.

b) Exchange Equalization Reserve
Exchange equalization reserve is a statutory reserve. Earning from foreign exchange revaluation gain
on foreign currency other than India currency has to allocate 25 percent of such revaluation gain to this
reserve as per provision of the Bank and Financial Institution Act. Any amount allocated to exchange
equalization reserve as per the provision of the Bank and Financial Institutions Act, shall be presented
under this heading.
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Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Reserve

In line with clause 16 of Directive 16/075, Finance Co. is required to allocate 1% of its net profit for
the year for CSR and is required to create CSR Reserve. The amount appropriated to this reserve is
expensed off as prescribed in the same Directive in the next fiscal year.

Regulatory Reserve

This is specific reserve created in line with NRB Directive 4. All the adjustments made in NFRS that
are different from earlier NRB Directives are included in this fund. This fund is not available for
distribution of dividend.

Capital Reserve

The capital reserve represents the amount of those reserves which are in nature of capital and which
shall not be available for distribution of cash dividend. The amount from share forfeiture due to non-
payment of remaining amount for the unpaid shares, capital grants received in cash or kind, capital
reserve arising out of merger and acquisition etc. should be presented under this heading.

Fair Value Reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of financial assets that are
measured at fair value and the changes in fair value is recognized in other comprehensive income, until
the assets are derecognized. The cumulative amount of changes in fair value of those financial assets
shall be presented under this account head.

Actuarial Gain Reserve
This reserve is for presenting the OCI component of defined benefit obligations. This is not an actual
reserve.

Special Reserve

In line with circular no. 12/072/073, the interest capitalised on loan that have been restructured or
rescheduled because of the borrower facing difficulty resulting from earthquake in 2072 is kept in this
reserve. The reserve is required to be maintained till the loan is settled.

Assets Revaluation Reserve

Any reserve created from revaluation of assets (such as Property & Equipment, Intangible Assets,
Investment Property) shall be presented under this heading. Revaluation reserves often serve as a
cushion against unexpected losses but may not be fully available to absorb unexpected losses due to
the subsequent deterioration in market values and tax consequences of revaluation.

Capital Redemption Reserve
This head shall include the statutory reserve created for making payment towards Redeemable Non-
Convertible Preference Shares.

Dividend Equalization Reserve

For the purpose of maintaining uniformity in dividend payment, certain amount of profit during the
year of profit making may be transferred shall be presented under this account head. Dividend may be
distributed by debiting this account with the approval of the Board of Directors and endorsed by the
General meeting.

Investment Adjustment Reserve
It is a regulatory reserve created as a cushion for adverse price movements in Finance Co.'s investments
as directed by the Directives of Nepal Rastra Bank.

3.19.3 Share Premium
The amount of money collected on issue of shares in excess of its face value shall be presented under this heading.
The outstanding amount in this account shall not be considered eligible for distribution of cash dividend.

3.19.4 Retained Earning
The accumulated profits which has not been distributed to shareholders and has been ploughed back in the licensed
institutions' operations and is free for distribution of dividend to the shareholders shall be presented under this

heading.
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3.20

3.21

3.22

3.23

3.24

Earning per share including diluted

The Finance Co. measures earning per share on the basis of the earning attributable to the equity shareholders for the
Period. The number of shares is taken as the weighted average number of shares for the relevant period as required
by NAS 33 Earnings per Share. EPS for prior year have been restated because of issue of bonus share during the year
as per NAS 33.

Segment reporting

Segment has been segregated based on the management function of Finance Co. and accordingly, the seven states of
Nepal are considered as the segments. Income and expenses directly related to such segments are reported. Assets
and liabilities specific to those are presented as segment assets and liabilities. Income tax is not segregated.

Non Banking Assets

Non Banking Assets are the assets obtained as security for loan and advances and subsequently taken by the finance
Co. in the course of loan recovery.Such assets are booked at fair market value or total amount due from the borrower
whichever is lower.The finance Co.has practice to transfer entire NBA amount to regulatory reserve as a provision.
which amount has been deducted on distributable profit for same fiscal year.

Staff Loan

Under previous NAS,staff loans were recorded at cost less repayments net loan loss provision, if any. Under NFRS,
the Finance Company has to measure the staff loans granted below the market interest rate rate their fair value,
calculate based on the market interest rate of similar product.

The Staff loan as on Asar end 2079 is Rs.4,86,26,632 as per amortization schedule based on NFRS.

Events after Reporting Date
These are the events occurring between the reporting date and up to the date of approval of financial statements
which are either adjustable or unadjustable.

Adjustable events are adjusted in the presented financial statements. There are no events that require additional
disclosure in the financial statements.
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Reliance Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
Cash and cash equivalent 4.1
Particulars As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078
Cash in hand 65,396,546 58,503,322
Balances with B/FIs 540,439,932 334,147,268
Money at call and short notice - -
Other - -
Total 605,836,478 392,650,589

Balances with bank and financial institution includes balance Rs. 1,776,271.99 (p.y Rs. 1,776,271.99) with problematic financial
institution (Himalaya Finance Ltd.). Presented amount is net of loss allowance on such balance.

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2
Particulars As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078
Statutory balances with NRB 221,569,845 270,888,959
Securities purchased under resale agreement -
Other deposit and receivable from NRB -
Total 221,569,845 270,888,959
Placements with Bank and Financial Institutions 4.3
Particulars As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078
Placement with domestic B/FIs 100,030,548
Placement with foreign B/FIs -
Less: Allowances for impairment -
Total - 100,030,548
Derivative financial instruments 4.4
Particulars As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078

Held for trading

Interest rate swap
Currency swap

Forward exchange contract
Others

Held for risk management
Interest rate swap
Currency swap

Forward exchange contract
Other

Total
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Other trading assets 4.5
Particulars As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078
Treasury bills - -
Government bonds - -
NRB Bonds - B
Domestic Corporate bonds - -
Equities - -
Other - -
Total - -
Pledged - -
Non-pledged - -
Loan and advances to B/FIs 4.6
Particulars As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078
Loans to microfinance institutions 360,692,242 325,798,627
Other
Less: Allowances for impairment (4,688,999) (4,235,382)
Total 356,003,243 321,563,245
4.6.1 :Allowances for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1 As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078
Impairment loss for the year:
Opening 4,235,382 3,998,500
Charge for the year 453,617 236,882
Recoveries/reversal
Amount written off -
Balance at Asar end 4,688,999 4,235,382
Loans and advances to customers 4.7
Particulars As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078
Loan and advances measured at amortized cost 5,306,470,052 4,542,480,120
Less: Impairment allowances
Collective impairment (57,986,486) (73,746,049)
Individual impairment (76,353,528) (64,867,135)
Net amount 5,172,130,038 4,403,866,936
Loan and advances measured at FVTPL
Total 5,172,130,038 4,403,866,936

Loan and advance is inclusive of staff loan and accrued interest on such loan net of interest suspense amount.

The above amount of impairment allowance is as per Directive issued by Nepal Rastra Bank.

We have selected around 30.53% of our outstanding loan for individual impairment test. The market value of collateral on valuation
date was subjected to haircut to arrive at adjusted fair value of collateral on each reporting date and if the adjusted fair value is
less than outstanding amount, individual impairment is considered along with other factors like repayment history of borrower,
credit rating, additional information of customer regarding financial capability, restructuring/rescheduling of loan, etc. None of
the loans were individually impaired. Collective assessment has been done using past default rate (probability of default) and a
calculated percentage for non- recovery (loss given default) and the rates have been used to calculate impairment allowance as
per NAS 39 using incurred loss model.
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Particulars

As at 32.03.2079

As at 31.03.2078

Individual impairment

Collective impairment 56,156,179 46,669,165
Total 56,156,179 46,669,165
Loan classification and impairment allowance as per NRB Directive 2 is as follows:

Particulars As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078
Performing loan 5,086,690,016 4,310,700,725
Good 4,795,351,996 4,059,739,501
Watch list 291,338,020 250,961,224
Non-performing loan 126,731,444 128,374,459
Substandard 53,328,016 71,999,982
Doubtful 57,326,626 1,256,848
Loss 16,076,802 55,117,629
Total 5,213,421,460 4,439,075,184
Add: loan to employees and Net AIR 93,048,593 103,404,935
Total loan 5,306,470,052 4,542,480,120
Impairment allowance
Performing loan 76,353,528 64,867,135
Good 61,786,627 52,319,074
Watch list 14,566,901 12,548,061
Non-performing loan 57,986,486 73,746,049
Substandard 13,246,371 17,999,995
Doubtful 28,663,313 628,424
Loss 16,076,802 55,117,629
Additional - -
Total 134,340,014 138,613,184
4.7.1: Analysis of loan and advances - By Product

Product As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078

Term loans 259,572 12,195,878
Overdraft 156,888,106 97,594,041
Trust receipt/Import loans - -
Demand and other working capital loans - 7,500,000
Personal residential loans 669,630,779 619,453,890
Real estate loans 343,864,412 360,551,237
Margin lending loans 442,266,245 335,512,086
Hire purchase loans 260,563,216 396,731,560
Deprived sector loans 76,446,240 11,580,132
Bills purchased - -
Staff loans 48,626,632 84,944,159
Other 3,263,502,890 2,597,956,359
Sub total 5,262,048,091 4,524,019,344
Interest receivable 44,421,961 18,460,776
Grand total 5,306,470,052 4,542,480,120
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4.7.2: Analysis of loan and advances - By Currency

Currency

As at 32.03.2079

As at 31.03.2078

Nepalese rupee
Indian rupee
United State dollar
Great Britain pound
Euro

Japenese yen

5,306,470,052

4,542,480,120

Chinese yuan
Other
Total 5,306,470,052 4,542,480,120
4.7.3: Analysis of loan and advances - By Collateral
Collateral As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078

Secured

Movable/immovable assets

Gold and silver

Guarantee of domestic B/FIs
Government guarantee

Guarantee of international rated bank
Collateral of export document
Collateral of fixed deposit receipt
Collateral of Governement securities
Counter guarantee

Personal guarantee

Other collateral

Subtotal

Unsecured

4,172,430,769

201,579,809

101,993,452
830,466,023
5,306,470,052

4,346,091,997

53,342,311
19,250,012

110,846,128
12,949,672
4,542,480,120

Grant Total

5,306,470,052

4,542,480,120

4.7.4: Allowances for impairment

Particulars

As at 32.03.2079

As at 31.03.2078

Specific allowances for impairment
Balance at Sawan 1

Impairment loss for the year:

Charge for the year

Recoveries/reversal during the year
Write-offs
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency
Other movement
Balance at Asar end
Collective allowances for impairment
Balance at Sawan 1
Impairment loss for the year:

Charge/(reversal) for the year

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency
Other movement
Balance at Asar end

138,613,184

(4,273,170)

134,340,014

74,659,284

63,953,900

138,613,184

Total allowances for impairment

134,340,014

138,613,184
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Investment securities 4.8

Particulars As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078
Investment securities measured at amortized cost 2,306,378,228 1,407,306,919
Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI 172,999,043 215,508,847
Total 2,479,377,272 1,622,815,765
4.8.1: Investment securities measured at amortized cost

Particulars As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078

Debt securities
Government bonds

1,760,347,165

1,112,900,213

Government treasury bills 492,528,236 294,406,706
Investments - Citizen Saving Bonds 53,502,827 -
Nepal Rastra Bank bonds -
Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments -
Other -
Less: specific allowances for impairment -
Total 2,306,378,228 1,407,306,919
4.8.2: Investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Particulars As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078

Equity instruments

Quoted equity securities 170,029,543 212,539,347

Unquoted equity securities 2,969,500 2,969,500
Total 172,999,043 215,508,847

38




M Reliance Finance Limited

(R Feamew wzaww fafwes

4.8.3: Information relating to investment in equities

As at 32.03.2079

As at 31.03.2078

S.No Particulars
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Investment in quoted equity 168,057,914 170,029,543| 169,632,038| 212,539,347
Laxmi Equity Fund 3,765,113 3,733,260 5,799,474 8,017,207
: 3,77,097 units of Rs.9.98 each
National Life Insurance Co.Ltd. 48,140,742 70,307,724 48,140,742 63,580,284
? 1,189,64 promoter shares of Rs.404.67 each
National Life Insurance Co.Ltd. 55,447,023 40,966,423 55,447,023 68,672,113
. 70,999 ordinary shares of Rs.780.95 each
NMB Hybrid Fund 1,577,400 1,766,688 1,577,400 2,153,151
! 15,7740 units of Rs.10 each
NLG Insurance Co.Ltd. 540,280 1,941,158 540,280 4,094,930
: 8,122 promoter shares of Rs.66.52 each
Premier Insurance Co.Ltd. 10,795,664 7,338,816 10,797,534 13,047,840
¢ 12,741 ordinary shares of Rs.847.32 each
Uniliver Nepal Ltd 10,327,805 6,609,600 10,327,805 6,982,200
’ 360 ordinary shares of Rs.28,688.35 each
IME General Insurance Ltd - 3,330 - 9,672
; 9 ordinary shares (Bonus Share)
NIC SIA Balance Fund 500,000 535,500 500,000 686,500
? 50,000 units of Rs.10 each
Sanima Equity Fund 1,054,743 1,285,200 1,577,384 2,531,932
10 10,800 units of Rs.10.46 each
NIBL Sahabhagita Fund 1,000,000 1,071,000 1,000,000 1,740,000
1 1,00,000 units of Rs.10 each
Laxmi Unnati Kosh 2,500,000 2,390,000 2,500,000 3,155,000
12 2,50,000 units of Rs.10 each
Sana Kisan Bikas Laghubitta Sanstha Ltd - 3,195 17,106 18,040
b 3 ordinary shares (Bonus Share)
Surya Life Insurance Company Limited 2,297,499 1,395,135 2,297,499 2,949,478
14 3,605 ordinary shares of Rs.637.31 each
s Kumari Equity Fund 2,500,000 2,517,500 2,500,000 2,625,000

2,50,000 units of Rs.10 each
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Sanima Large Cap Fund 10,000,000 9,320,000 10,000,000 10,500,000
1o 10,00,000 units of Rs.10 each
NIBL Samridhi Fund-2 1,000,000 867,000 1,000,000 1,081,000
v 1,00,000 units of Rs.10 each
Nerudhe Laghu Bitta Sanstha 3,109,790 5,772,800 3,109,790 8,000,000
' 13,120 promoter shares of Rs.237.03 each
Prabhu Select Fund 2,501,855 2,402,500 2,500,000 2,535,000
o 2,50,000 units of Rs.10 each
Sunrise Bluechip Fund 10,000,000 8,740,000 10,000,000 10,160,000
20 10,00,000 units of Rs.10 each
Kumari Dhanbirddhi 500,000 500,000
2l 50,000 units of Rs.10 each
Lumbini General Insurance Co. - 61,120
> 160 ordinary shares (Bonus Share)
Mero Micro Finance Laghubitta - 847
> 1 ordinary shares (Bonus Share)
NIC ASIA Flexicap Fund 500,000 500,000
o 50,000 units of Rs.10 each
Nepal Life Insurance Co.Ltd - 747
> 1 ordinary shares (Bonus Share)
Investment in unquoted equity 1,082,800 2,969,500 1,082,800 2,969,500
Nepal Clearing House Ltd. 1,082,800 2,969,500 1,082,800 2,969,500
26 29,695 shares of Rs.36.46 each
Total 169,140,714 172,999,043| 170,714,838| 215,508,847
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Current tax assets 4.9

Particulars As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078
Current tax assets 45,991,455 85,610,438
Current year income tax assets 43,146,987 82,765,970
Tax assets of prior periods 2,844,468 2,844,468
Current tax liabilities 33,968,193 68,323,355
Current year income tax liabilities 32,000,924 66,356,086
Tax liabilities of prior periods 1,967,269 1,967,269
Total 12,023,262 17,287,083
Investment in subsidiaries 4.10

Particulars As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078
Investment in quoted subsidiaries - -
Investment in unquoted subsidiaries - -
Total investment - -
Less: Impairment allowances
Net carrying amount - -
4.10.1: Investment in quoted subsidiaries

Particulars As at 32.03.2?79 As at 31.03.2?78
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Total - - -
4.10.2: Investment in unquoted subsidiaries
Particulars As at 32.03.2?79 As at 31.03.2(')78
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Total - - -

4.10.3: Information relating to subsidiaries of the Bank

Particulars

Percentage of ownership held by the Bank

As at 32.03.2079

As at 31.03.2078

Total
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4.10.4: Non controlling interest of the subsidiaries
. As at 32.03.2079
Particulars
Ltd. Ltd.
Equity interest held by NCI (%) -
Profit/(loss) allocated during the year -
Accumulated balances of NCI as on Asar end -
Dividend paid to NCI -
As at 32.03.2079
Ltd. Ltd.

Equity interest held by NCI (%) -
Profit/(loss) allocated during the year -
Accumulated balances of NCI as on Asar end -
Dividend paid to NCI

As at 32.03.2079
Ltd. Ltd.

Equity interest held by NCI (%) -
Profit/(loss) allocated during the year -
Accumulated balances of NCI as on Asar end -
Dividend paid to NCI

Investment in associates 4.11

Particulars As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078

Investment in quoted associates - -

Investment in unquoted associates - -

Total investment - -

Less: Impairment allowances - -

Net carrying amount - -

4.11.1: Investment in quoted associates

As at 32.03.2079 As at 31.03.2078
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Particulars

Total - - - -

4.11.2: Investment in unquoted associates

As at 32.03.2079 As at 31.03.2078
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Particulars

Total - - - -

4.11.3: Information relating to associates of the Bank

Percentage of ownership held by the Finance Company
As at 32.03.2079 As at 31.03.2078

Particulars

Total - -
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4.11.4: Equity value of associates

Particulars

As at 32.03.2079

As at 31.03.2078

Total

Investment properties

4.12

Particulars

As at 32.03.2079

As at 31.03.2078

Investment properties measured at fair value
Balance as on Sawan 1

Addition during the year

Disposal during the year

Net changes in fair value during the year
Adjustment/transfer

Net amount

Investment properties measured at cost
Balance as on Sawan |

Addition during the year

Disposal during the year
Adjustment/transfer

Accumulated depreciation

Accumulated impairment loss

2,346,730
4,109,085

1,620,874
1,632,107
(906,250)

Net amount

6,455,816

2,346,730

Total

6,455,816

2,346,730

Investment property comprise the following assets accounted as non-banking assets (NBA) as per NRB Directives.

Name of Party/NBA Date As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078

Manakamana Hastakala, Madanpur, Nuwakot /2074.03.02 714,624 714,624
Chakra Trading Pvt.Ltd,Sutranagar-8,Chitwan/2077.10.26 1,632,107 1,632,107
Harry Knokha Handicraft Pvt Ltd, KMC-6,Boudha/2078.06.08 1,343,397 -
Tiklal Sadashankar,Shishuwa-1,Kaski/2079.01.13 2,765,688 -
Total 6,455,816 2,346,730
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Goodwill and Intangible Assets 4.14
. . Software Total Asar | Total Asar
Particulars Goodwill Purchased | Developed Other end 2079 end 2078
Cost
As on Sawan 1, 2077 5,463,342 - 5,463,342 3,327,642
Addition during the Year 1,315,320 1,315,320 2,135,700
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation
Balance as on Asar end, 2078 6,778,662 - 6,778,662 5,463,342
Addition during the Year 696,080 696,080 [ 1,315,320
Acquisition - -
Capitalization - -
Disposal during the year - -
Adjustment/Revaluation - -
Balance as on Asar end 2079 7,474,742 - 7,474,742 6,778,662
Amortization and Impairment
As on Sawan 1, 2077 2,819,142 - 2,819,142 2,181,324
Amortization charge for the Year 935,414 935,414 637,818
Impairment for the year
Disposals
Adjustment
Balance as on Asar end, 2078 3,754,556 - 3,754,556 2,819,142
Amortization charge for the Year 1,021,219 1,021,219 935,414
Impairment for the year - -
Disposals - -
Adjustment - -
As on Asar end 2079 4,775,775 - 4,775,775 3,754,556
Capital Work in Progress
Net Book Value
As on Asar end 2077 2,644,200 - 2,644,200 | 1,146,318
As on Asar end 2078 3,024,106 - 3,024,106 | 2,644,200
As on Asar end 2079 2,698,967 - 2,698,967 | 3,024,106
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Deferred Tax 4.15
As at 32.03.2079
Particulars Deferred Tax Deferred Tax IS DTt
Assets Liabilities Tax Assets/
(Liabilities)

Deferred tax on temporory differences on following items

Loan and Advance to B/FIs -

Loans and advances to customers -

Investment properties -

Investment securities - 1,157,499 (1,157,499)

Property & equipment 209,264 209,264

Employees' defined benefit plan - -

Lease liabilities 17,682,155 17,115,018 567,137

Provisions -

Other temporory differences 1,589,328 1,589,328
Deferred tax on temporory differences 19,480,747 18,272,517 1,208,230
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate
Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on 32 Asar 2079 19,480,747 18,272,517 1,208,230
Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on 1 Sawan 2078 11,133,850
Origination/(Reversal) during the year 12,342,080
Deferred tax (expense)/income recognised in profit or loss 61,376
Ezt(‘)egzd tax (expense)/income recognised in other comprehensive 12,280,704
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in directly in equity
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Deferred Tax
As at 31.03.2078
Particulars Deferred Tax Deferred Tax Net Deferred
Assets Liabilities Tax Assets/
(Liabilities)
Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Loan and Advance to B/FIs -
Loans and advances to customers -
Investment properties -
Investment securities - 13,438,202 (13,438,202)
Property & equipment 1,009,976 1,009,976
Employees' defined benefit plan - -
Lease liabilities -
Provisions -
Other temporary differences 1,294,377 1,294,377
Deferred tax on temporary differences 2,304,353 13,438,202 (11,133,850)
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses - - -
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate - - -
Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on 31 Asar 2078 2,304,353 13,438,202 (11,133,850)
Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on 1 Sawan 2077 (12,397,887)
Origination/(Reversal) during the year (23,531,736)
Deferred tax (expense)/income recognised in profit or loss (7,920,024)

Deferred tax (expense)/income recognised in other
comprehensive income

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in directly in equity

(15,611,712)
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4.16

Particulars

As at 32.03.2079

As at 31.03.2078

Assets held for sale

Other non banking assets

Bills receivable

Accounts receivable

Accrued income

Prepayments and deposit
Income tax deposit

Deferred employee expenditure
Other

9,193,225

3,074,032

8,563,967
3,375,718

12,725,082

3,896,148

1,149,096
1,947,975

Total

24,206,942

19,718,301

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions

4.17

Particulars

As at 32.03.2079

As at 31.03.2078

Money market deposits
Interbank borrowing

Other deposits from BFIs
Settlement and clearing accounts
Other deposits from BFIs

206,958,100

175,405,219

Total

206,958,100

175,405,219

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

4.18

Particulars

As at 32.03.2079

As at 31.03.2078

Refinance from NRB

Standing Liquidity Facility

Lender of last report facility from NRB
Securities sold under repurchase agreements
Borrowings from NRB

Other payable to NRB

850,000,000
13,500,000

Total

863,500,000

Derivative financial instruments

4.19

Particulars

As at 32.03.2079

As at 31.03.2078

Held for trading
Interest rate swap

Currency swap
Forward exchange contract
Others

Held for risk management
Interest rate swap
Currency swap
Forward exchange contract
Others

Total
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Deposits from customers 4.20
Particulars As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078

Institutions customers:
Term deposits 828,266,313 562,858,279
Call deposits 485,225,527 629,947,674
Current deposits 19,540,901 122,832,520
Other

Individual customers:
Term deposits 3,822,202,468 2,244,248,027

Saving deposits

Current deposits

1,514,436,704

2,103,970,327

Other 662,055
Total 6,669,671,912 5,664,518,881
4.20.1: Currency wise analysis of deposit from customers

Particulars As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078
Nepalese rupee 6,669,671,912 5,664,518,881
Indian rupee - -
United State dollar - -
Great Britain pound - -
Euro - -
Japenese yen - -
Chinese yuan - -
Other - -
Total 6,669,671,912 5,664,518,881
Borrowing 4.21

Particulars As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078

Domestic Borrowing
Nepal Government
Other Institutions
Other

Sub total

Foreign Borrowing
Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions
Multilateral Development Banks

Other Institutions

Sub total

Total
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4.22

Particulars

As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078

Provisions for redundancy

Provision for restructuring

Pending legal issues and tax litigation
Onerous contracts

Other

Total

4.22.1: Movement in provision

Particulars

As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078

Balance at Sawan 1

Provisions made during the year
Provisions used during the year
Provisions reversed during the year

Unwind of discount

Balance at Asar end

Other liabilities

4.23

Particulars

As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078

Liability for employees defined benefit obligation*
Liability for long-service leave®*

Short-term employee benefits

Bills payable -
Creditors and accruals 8,673,143 5,384,590
Interest payable on deposit 53,974,087 32,907,528
Interest payable on borrowing 696,164 -
Liabilities on defered grant income -
Unpaid Dividend 8,516,353 10,555,620
Liabilities under Finance Lease 58,940,518 -
Employee bonus payable 10,308,625 24,864,696
Other 11,232,982 10,823,055
Total 152,341,873 84,535,488

*  The amount represents amount payable to employees in respect of gratuity calculated as per Labor Act 2074.
Upon compliance with Labour Act 2074, the amount of liability is fixed and accordingly, does not require actuarial

valuation.

**  The amount is actual liability at each financial reporting date. The total liability amount is not material to the

financial statements, accordingly, actuarial valuation has not been done.
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4.23.1: Defined benefit obligations
As actuarial valuation is not required for gratuity as mentioned above, the disclosure part from note no. 4.23.1 to 4.23.7 is not

required to be filled up, hence kept blank.

Particulars As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078
Present value of unfunded obligations

Present value of funded obligations
Total present value of obligations
Fair value of plan assets

Present value of net obligations

Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations

4.23.2: Plan assets
Plan assets comprise

Particulars As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078

Equity securities
Government bonds

Bank deposit

Other

Total

Actual return on Plan Assets

4.23.3: Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations

Particulars As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078
Defined benefit obligations at Sawan 1

Actuarial losses
Benefits paid by the plan
Current service costs and interest

Defined benefit obligations at Asar end

4.23.4: Movement in the fair value of plan assets
Particulars As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078

Fair value of plan assets at Sawan 1
Contributions paid into the plan
Benefits paid during the year
Actuarial (losses) gains

Expected return on plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at Asar end

4.23.5: Amount recognised in profit or loss
Particulars As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078

Current service costs
Interest on obligation
Expected return on plan assets
Total - -
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4.23.6: Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

Particulars As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078
Acturial (gain)/loss
Total - -
4.23.7: Actuarial assumptions

Particulars As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078
Discount rate
Expected return on plan asset
Future salary increase
Withdrawal rate
Debt securities issued 4.24

Particulars As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078
Debt securities issued designated as at fair - -
value through profit or loss - -
Debt securities issued at amortised cost - -
Total - -
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25

Particulars As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078
Redeemable preference shares - -
Irredemable cumulative preference shares - -
Other - -
Total - -
Share capital 4.26

Particulars As at 31.03.2077 | As at 31.03.2076
Ordinary shares 1,053,006,319 915,657,669
Convertible preference shares (equity component) -
Irredemable preference shares (equity component) -
Perpetual debt (equity component only) -
Total 1,053,006,319 915,657,669
4.25.1: Ordinary shares

Particulars As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078

Authorized Capital
12,000,000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each
Issued capital

1,200,000,000

1,000,000,000

10,530,063 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each 1,053,006,319 915,657,669
Subscribed and paid up capital

10,530,063 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each 1,053,006,319 915,657,669
Less: issue cost of equity capital - -
Total 1,053,006,319 915,657,669
Regulatory Capital (Capital as per NRB Directives, including proposed bonus shares 1,053,006,319 915,657,669

for previous years )
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Reconciliation of no. of equity shares As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078
Opening 915,657,669 832,416,063
Add: issued during the year 137,348,650 83,241,606
Closing 1,053,006,320 915,657,669
4.25.2: Ordinary share ownership
Particulars As at 32.03.2079 As at 31.03.2078
Percent Amount Percent Amount

Domestic ownership
Nepal Government
"A" class licensed institutions
Other licensed institutions
Other Institutions 6.95 73,155,200 4.09| 37,417,490
Public 93.05 979,851,120 9591 | 878,240,179
Other
Foreign ownership
Total 100.00 | 1,053,006,320 100.00 | 915,657,669

The shareholders holding 0.5% or more of total paid up capital as at 32.03.2079 are as follows:

Name of shareholder % of holding
Kush Praasd Mally 2.69
Rajendra Praasd Mally 2.56
Rastriya Beema Sansthan 2.50
Gyanendra Praasd Mally 1.96
Ravi krishna Shrestha 1.08
Sagarmatha Insurance Co.Ltd 0.98
Eren Gopal Ranjitkar 0.64
Salona Tuladhar 0.63
Gautam Kumar Dongol 0.62
Ram Prakash Shrestha 0.60
Amrit Lal Shrestha 0.56
Kabindra Shrestha 0.55
Hathway Stock Dealer Ltd 0.54
Rabindra Bajracharya 0.54
Debendra Khadka 0.51
Ravi Bikram Dhoj Joshi 0.50
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Reserves 4.27

Particulars As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078
Statutory general reserve 154,522,690 139,845,418
Exchange equilisation reserve - -
Corporate social responsibility reserve 1,979,872 2,480,951
Capital redemption reserve - -
Regulatory reserve 24,939,421 26,457,464
Investment adjustment reserve - -
Capital reserve - -
Assets revaluation reserve - -
Fair value reserve 2,700,831 31,355,806
Dividend equalisation reserve - -
Actuarial gain - -
Special reserve - -
Other reserve 2,900,516 1,040,537
Total 187,043,330 201,180,176

4.27.1: Movement of specific reserves for the year 2078-79 is as follows:

Particulars Corporate social responsibility Training reserve
reserve
Opening 2,480,951 1,040,537
Addition for the year 711,467 2,451,077
Utilization during the year (1,212,546) (591,098)
Closing 1,979,872 2,900,516
4.27.2: The composition of regulatory reserve is as follows:
The movement in regulatory reserve is as follows:
Particulars Amount Note
Opening 26,457,464
Interest income under NFRS 1,203,251 1
Shares at fair value less than their cost (3,345,605) 2
Addition to non-banking assets 1,720,434 3
Deferred tax assets on items other than share valuation (1,096,123) 4
Total 24,939,421

1. Reversal from interest during the current year has been adjusted in regulatory reserve.
2. Reduction in loss on shares (on shares with fair value less than market value) has been adjusted in regulatory reserve.
3. Net Additional non- banking asset booked during the year has been included in regulatory reserve.
4. Deferred tax income booked in profit or loss has been transferred to regulatory reserve.

The composition of regulatory reserve is as follows:

Particulars As at 32.03.2079 | As at 31.03.2078
Interest income on NFRS 19,664,027 18,460,776
Loss on investment - 3,345,605
Loss on NBA 4,067,164 2,346,730
Deferred tax 1,208,230 2,271,518
Total 24,939,421 26,424,630
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Contingent liabilities and commitments

4.28

Particulars

As at 32.03.2079

As at 31.03.2078

Contingent liabilities

Undrawn and undisbursed facilities
Capital commitment

Lease Commitment

Litigation

84,522,918

96,870,000

81,311,604

Total

84,522,918

178,181,604

4.28.1: Contingent liabilities

Particulars

As at 32.03.2079

As at 31.03.2078

Acceptance and documentary credit
Bills for collection

Forward exchange contracts
Guarantees

Underwriting commitment

Other commitments

Total

4.28.2: Undrawn and undisbursed facilities

Particulars

As at 32.03.2079

As at 31.03.2078

Undisbursed amount of loans
Undrawn limits of overdrafts
Undrawn limits of credit cards
Undrawn limits of letter of credit

Undrawn limits of guarantee

13,880,000
70,642,918

96,870,000

Total

84,522,918

96,870,000

4.28.3: Capital commitments

Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the finance company but provision has not been made in financial

statements.

Particulars

As at 32.03.2079

As at 31.03.2078

Approved and contracted for

Approved but not contracted for

Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment

Sub total

Approved and contracted for

Approved but not contracted for

Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets

Sub total

Total
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Particulars

As at 32.03.2079

As at 31.03.2078

Operating lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating lease, where the
bank is lessee

Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years

590,684
50,061,854
30,659,066

Sub total

81,311,604

Finance lease commitments
Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating lease, where the
bank is lessee
Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years
Sub total

Grand total

81,311,604

4.28.5: Litigation

A. Income Tax Matters

Finance Co. has filed a case at Revenue Tribunal on 2078.01.27 against the income tax assessment made by Middle Taxpayer
Office for fiscal year 2073-74. The total amount demanded by tax office and not accepted by Finance Co. was Rs. 16.90
lakhs which included assessment amount of Rs. 9.20 lakhs. The case has not been decided by the authoritie.

B. Other Legal Cases

There are six cases for and against Finance Co. in different courts. The cases are of general in nature and the company does

not expect any additional financial liability to arise on settlement of the cases.
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Interest income

4.29

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Cash and cash equivalent 5,984,130 13,423,573
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank
Placement with bank and financial institutions
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions 29,140,388 24,988,891
Loans and advances to customers 650,091,273 472,171,869
Investment securities 76,977,442 40,600,146
Loan and advances to staff 7,216,442 4,521,516
Other
Total interest income 769,409,676 555,705,995

* Interest income of 2078-79 is inclusive of Rs. 1,32,09,219 collected within Shrawan 15th, 2079 in line with NRB Directives.
During the year, Rs.1,27,51,966 has been inlcuded in interest income as per NFRS and accured interest income on
substandard,doubtful and bad loan has not been recognized.

Interest expenses

4.30

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Due to bank and financial institutions 2,420,640 979,180
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 658,115 8,716,161
Deposits from customers 503,449,109 394,989,589
Borrowing 11,993,156 -
Debt securities issued
Subordinated liabilities
Other 1,884,043
Total interest expense 520,405,063 404,684,930
Fees and Commission Income 4.31
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Loan administration fees -
Service fees 29,228,925 32,214,151
Consortium fees
Commitment fees
DD/TT/Swift fees
Credit card/ATM issuance and renewal fees 29,041 19,707
Prepayment and swap fees 2,434,395 2,917,715
Investment banking fees
Asset management fees
Brokerage fees 1,627,786 1,032,712
Remittance fees 928,504 898,761
Commission on letter of credit
Commission on guarantee contracts issued
Commission on share underwriting/issue
Locker rental
Other fees and commission income 4,493,810 3,396,284
Total fees and Commission Income 38,742,462 40,479,329

57




&M% Reliance Finance Limited

% (R e e fafiee
Fees and commission expenses 4.32
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

ATM management fees
VISA/Master card fees
Guarantee commission
Brokerage

DD/TT/Swift fees

Remittance fees and commission

Other fees and commission expense

Total fees and Commission Expense

Net Trading Income

4.33

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Changes in fair value of trading assets
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets
Interest income on trading assets
Dividend income on trading assets
Gain/loss foreign exchange transation
Other

Net trading income

Other operating income

4.34

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Foreign exchange revauation gain

Gain/loss on sale of investment securities
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties
Dividend on equity instruments

Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment
Gain/loss on sale of investment property
Operating lease income

Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver

Locker rent

Other

728,904

3,990,265

274,731,793

2,580,472
528,681

Total

4,719,169

277,840,946

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses

4.35

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/FIs

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer

Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment
Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with banks and financial institutions

Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment

Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets

Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties

453,617
(4,273,170)

236,882
63,953,900

Total

(3,819,553)

64,190,783
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Personnel Expenses

4.36

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Salary 45,442,455 42,290,329
Allowances 23,730,851 21,786,376
Gratuity expense 2,914,952
Provident fund 3,497,939
Social Security Fund 8,366,451 1,462,178
Uniform 2,034,168
Training & development expense 591,098 283,346
Leave encashment 2,683,042 3,215,613
Medical/Insurance 3,384,404 2,959,210
Employees incentive
Cash-settled share-based payments
Pension expense
Finance expense under NFRS 95,758 93,144
Other expenses related to staff 4,887,963 3,199,475
Subtotal 91,216,190 81,702,562
Employees bonus 10,308,625 24,864,696
Grand total 101,524,815 106,567,258
Other operating expenses 4.37
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Directors' fee 1,148,000 1,185,500
Directors' expense 120,792 160,556
Auditors' remuneration

a) Statutory audit Fee 452,000 339,000

b) Internal audit Fee 452,000 339,000

¢) System audit Fee - 350,000
Other audit related expense
Professional and legal expense 5,498,492 5,254,605
Office administration expense 52,499,256 41,448,242
Operating lease expense - 13,780,887
Operating expense of investment properties
Corporate social responsibility expense 1,212,546 39,445
Onerous lease provisions
Other
Total 61,383,086 62,897,235
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Other operating expenses 4.37
Office administration expenses include the following: Current Year Previous Year
Water and electricity 3,114,583 3,105,409
Repair and maintenance
Building - -
Vehicles 458,212 402,881
Computer and accessories 167,259 261,266
Office equipment and furniture 17,605 35,040
Others 135,847 182,498
Insurance 1,517,998 1,262,140
Postage, telex, telephone , fax 2,970,864 2,897,795
Printing and stationery 3,029,687 2,621,081
Newspaper, books and journal 47,690 49,845
Advertisement 2,084,339 1,099,244
Donation 8,000 26,200
Security 14,699,374 14,585,479
Deposit and loan guarantee premium 1,396,385 1,204,732
Travel allowance and expense 1,384,739 1,066,115
Entertainment 562,077 279,851
Annual/special general meeting 303,707 292,938
Other 20,600,890 12,075,728
Total 52,499,256 41,448,242
Depreciation & Amortisation 4.38
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Depreciation on property and equipment 29,270,427 10,968,390
Depreciation on investment property
Amortisation of intangible assets 1,021,219 935,414
Total 30,291,646 11,903,804
Non operating income 4.39
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Recovery of loan written off
Other income
Total - -
Non operating expenses 4.40
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Loan written off
Redundancy provision
Expense of restructuring

Other expense

Total
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Income tax expenses

4.41

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Current tax expense 32,000,924 66,356,086
Current year 32,000,924 66,356,086
Adjustments for prior years
Deferred tax expense (61,376) 7,920,024
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (61,376) 7,920,024
Changes in tax rate
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses
Total income tax expense/(income) 31,939,548 74,276,111
4.41.1: Reconciliation of tax expenses and accounting profit
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Current Year
Profit before tax 103,086,251 223,782,262
Tax amount at tax rate of 30% 30,925,875 67,134,679
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose 3,030,951 1,005,525
Less: Tax effect on exempt income 1,955,903 1,784,117
Add/less: Tax effect on other items (61,376) 7,920,024
Total income tax expense 31,939,548 74,276,111
Effective tax rate 30.98% 33.19%
Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss 4.42
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Opening retained earning 161,622,049 96,069,801
Bonus Share Distribution to shareholders (137,348,650) (83,241,606)
Cash Dividend(For Tax Purpose) Distribution to shareholders (7,228,876) (4,381,137)
Reserves transferred to retained earning (Last year Fair value - (2,840,048)
adjustment)
Gain/Loss in Sale of Share from OCI 1,180,507
Adjusted retained earning available for distribution before current year profit 18,225,029 5,607,010
Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss 71,146,704 149,506,151
Appropriations:
a. General reserve (14,677,272) (29,901,230)
b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund
c. Capital redemption reserve
d. Corporate social responsibility fund (711,467) (1,495,062)
e. Employees' training fund (2,451,077)
f. Other
1.Staff Training Expenses transfer form other reserve 591,098 2,862,794 (733,691)
2.CSR Expenses transfer from CSR reserve 1,212,546
3. Diffrence in Tax after Tax Audit 1,059,150
Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment 74,394,711 122,983,178
Regulatory adjustment :
a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+) (1,203,251) (7,752,927)
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+)
c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+) 3,345,605 52,038,104
d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+) (1,720,434) (725,857)
e. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+) 1,096,123 (4,920,449)
f. Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+)
g. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/reversal (+)
h. Actuarial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+)
i. Other (+/-)
Distributable profit or (loss) for current year 75,912,754 161,622,049
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Reliance Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

5 Disclosure and Additional Information
5.1 Risk Management

The Finance Co.’s business activities expose to a variety of risks, namely primarily to fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates, liquidity risk, operational risk and credit risk, which may adversely impact the fair value of its
financial instruments and in overall, impact the financial performance and position of Finance Co.. The Finance Co.'s
Board and senior management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Finance Co.'s risk
management. The Finance Co.'s risk management policies are established to identify and analyses the risks faced by
the Finance Co., to set appropriate risk limits (tolerance limit) and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to
limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company's activities.

a)

b)

Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the probability of loss due to a borrower’s failure to make payments on the loan provided
by the Finance Co.. This directly impacts the financial performance of Finance Co.. Motive of credit risk
management is to gain a complete understanding of a Finance Co.’s overall credit risk by viewing risk at the
individual, customer and portfolio levels so that mitigating measures could be applied at desired levels.

Credit policy, product papers are the primary documented matters that are directly linked to credit risk management.
The policies and procedures to be followed are in documented form defining roles and responsibilities of the
personnel involved that provides a degree to autonomy on the evaluation and analysis of individual borrower.
Credit Administration Department, Risk Management Department function to supervise risk on overall
level.

Each prospective borrower is thoroughly analyzed on his/her past, current status and future endeavours in order
to ensure that borrower has capacity of repayment, before a credit is approved. Sufficient adequate collateral is
obtained for all approved credit. Depending on the risk assigned to borrower, subsequent monitoring is being
done. For similar group of borrowers, credit portfolio is prepared based on sector of loan.

The tools being used by Finance Co. to assess overall credit risk is the ratio of non-performing loan to total loan
on each loan sector.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of happening of potential loss on assets of the Finance Co. due to market factors. Market
factors mainly comprise of interest rate, foreign exchange and collateral price. This risk is not entirely manageable
as it encompasses factors that are not wholly within the control of Finance Co. and arises on transaction with
customers. In general, management of this type of risk is by diversification.

Finance Co. has the objective of effective risk management by way of risk identification, measurement, monitoring,
management and analysis.

Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk is the risk of increased volatility due to changes in interest rate. Our nation
has seen frequent and high changes in interest rate on deposit in the recent year with interest rate skyrocketing
on few months time. Managing this risk is itself a huge challenge because fund diversion from one to Finance to
another Finance is of high probability. Finance Co. has been focusing on raising fixed term deposits with fixed
interest rate in order to lock the available liquidity/deposit for specified period.

Foreign Exchange Risk: Foreign exchange risk is the risk of changes in exchange rates of convertible foreign
currencies. This risk mainly arises from changes in exchange rate of US Dollars. Finance Co. does not have
transaction in foreign currency.

Equity Price Risk: Finance Co. has secured its loan by way of obtaining lien over the collateral of borrower.
The value of loan disbursed is directly pegged with the value of collateral. Decrease in price of collateral may
result in cases of non-recovery of the due amount if borrower defaults in making payment. Collateral value may
decline due to environmental factors, government decision, etc. Finance Co. properly analyzes the collateral
before considering it as security and conducts independent valutation of collateral. Revaluation is done on
periodic basis based on the developments after previous valuation and necessary mitigative measures are taken
if the value is found to have been declined.
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5.2

)

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that either Finance Co. does not have financial resource to meet its obligations when
due or could access to those resources at excessively high cost. Liquidity risk is managed by complying with
the Directives and circulars issued by regulatory authority on time to time basis. CRR and SLR are maintained
as per regulatory requirement and periodic status of liquidity profile are prepared to analyse liquidity status.
Assets Liability Management Committee is formed at Finance Co. to monitor the liquidity profile. Cash, highly
liquid securities and investments form an integral part of managing liquidity risk.

Operational risk is potential for loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems
or external events. Risk Management Department is in place to monitor and mitigate operational risk. Standard
operating procedures are prepared and implemented in order to define the process, people and system involved
in each operational matters with existence of four eyes on each transaction (maker and cheker function).
Finance Co. carries out internal audit from independent professionals on periodic basis in order to review the
effectiveness of control system that has been designed to mitigate the operational risk which is monitored by

Information technology risk refers to the risk arising from use of information technology. It includes hardware and
software failure, human error on using IT, spam , virus, malacious attacks and also includes natural disaster. IT is
integral part of operation of Finance Co. and Finance Co. has to rely heavily on IT. In order to minimize the risk
related to IT, Finance Co. has in place Business Continuity Plan. The assessment of IT risk is done periodically
by way of IS Audit, among others. Finance Co. has inhouse IT department for daily monitoring, evaluation
of IT related issues. Finance Co.'s IT risk management comprises of investing in resources for identification,
detection, recovery, respond and protection of IT assets.

d) Operational Risk

the Audit Committee.
e) Information Technology Risk
f)  Other Risk

The everchanging environment gives rise to various new risks. Some of this include reputational risk, human
resource risk, compliance risk etc. The risks are being evaluated and managed on daily/periodic basis by way of
implementing mitigating measures. Nevertheless, the Risk Management Department/Compliance Department
remains vigilant towards each risk.

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities and their Classification

The method of determination of fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities of the Finance Co. at three levels
(level one, level two and level three) has been disclosed in Note 3.4.4. Classification of financial assets and financial
liabilities is done as mentioned in Note 3.4.2.

Fair value measurement is done for investment in shares. Fair value heirarchy of financial assets and liabilites at each
reporting dates for the financial instruments presented in statement of financial position is as follows:

As at 32 Ashad 2079

Particulars Classification Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 605,836,478
Due from Nepal Rastra Finance Co. AC 221,569,845
Loans and advances to customers AC 5,528,133,282
Investment securities

Quoted shares FVOCI 170,029,543

Unquoted shares FVOCI 2,969,500

Other Investment AC 2,306,378,228
Total Financial Assets 170,029,543 8,664,887,333
Financial Liabilities
Due to Finance Co. and Financial Instituions AC
Deposits from customers AC 6,669,671,912
Other Liabilities AC 152,341,873
Total Financial Liabilities - 6,822,013,785

Note: AC = Amortized Cost, FVOCI = Fair Value Through OCI
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5.3 Capital Management
5.3.1 Principle and Objective

The principle of capital management of the Finance Co. is to maintain strong capital base, meet the regulatory
requirements and ensure reasonable return on capital to its shareholders. The Finance Co., throught its senior
management level and manages the capital to meet regulatory requirement at all times and the Board ensures that
such management of capital has been carried out by the management. Finance Co. has issued ordinary equity shares
and the paid up capital meets the requirement of NRB. Periodic review of core capital and capital fund is also being
done to ensure the capital base remains strong. Capital Adequacy Framework (CAF) 2007 (Updated 2008) is a
benchmark of managing capital base of the Finance Co.

Finance Co. has not issued preference capital or any other form of hybrid insutruments that may be converted into

capital.

5.3.2 Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy

Capital Fund of Finance Co. as per CAF 2007 is as follows (amount in '000):

Particulars

As at 32 Ashad
2079

As at 31 Ashad
2078

1.1 Risk Weighted Exposure (RWE)

RWE for Credit Risk

6,254,742

4,598,543

RWE for Operational Risk

512,697

371,528

RWE for Market Risk

Total RWE before adjustment under Pillar 11

6,767,439

4,970,071

Adjustments under Pillar I

Adjustments under Pillar [I(Add RWE equvalent to reciprocal of capital charge
of 2 % of gross income)

9,387

Adjustments under Pillar II(Overall risk management policies and precedures
are not satisfactory. Add 2% of RWE)

135,349

Total RWE

6,912,174

4,970,071

1.2 Capital

A. Core Capital (Tier I)

1,280,265

1,218,266

Paid up Equity Share Capital

1,053,006

915,658

Irredeemable Non-cumulative preference shares

Share Premium

1,141

1,141

Proposed Bonus Equity Shares

Statutory General Reserves

154,523

139,845

Retained Earnings

75,913

161,622

Un-audited current year cumulative profit/(loss)

Capital Redemption Reserve

Capital Adjustment Reserve

Dividend Equalization Reserves

Other Free Reserve

Less: Goodwill

Less: Deferred Tax Assets

(1,208)

Less: Fictitious Assets

Less: Investment in equity in licensed Financial Institutions

Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests

(3,110)

Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits

Less: Investments arising out of underwriting commitments

Less: Reciprocal crossholdings

Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit and unutilized

Less: Other Deductions

Adjustments under Pillar 11
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B. Supplementary Capital (Tier I1) 81,043 69,103
Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share
Subordinated Term Debt
Hybrid Capital Instruments
General Loan Loss Provision 81,043 69,103
Exchange Equalization Reserve
Investment Adjustment Reserve - -
Assets Revaluation Reserve
Other Reserves
Total Capital Fund (Tier I and Tier II) 1,361,307 1,287,368
1.3 Capital Adequacy Ratio
Tier I Capital to Total RWE 18.52% 24.51%
Total Capital Fund to Total RWE 19.69% 25.90%
5.3.3 Risk Exposure
Table of Risk Exposure at the reporting dates (amount in '000) is as follows:
a) Credit Risk
Current Year Previous Year
A. Balance Sheet Exposures \l?a(;::l; Pigsg:?:n Eéilg{;l/)lle Net Value WI::ZII(I ¢ W:i{;hl;ed Net Value W::;slll;ed
Exposures Exposures
a b c d=a-b-c e f=d*e
Cash Balance 65,397 65,397 0% - 58,503 0
Balance With Nepal Rastra Bank 221,570 221,570 0% - 270,889
Gold - 0% - - 0
g;vcis:l‘t‘:::t in Nepalese Government 2,274,887 2,274,887 0% S| 1,390,634 0
All Claims on Government of Nepal - 0% - - 0
Investment in Nepal Rastra Bank securities - 0% - - 0
All claims on Nepal Rastra Bank - 0% - -
Claims on Foreign Government and Central ) 0% ) ) 0
Bank (ECA 0-1)
g;;:lr(n(sE%:f)zrflgn Government and Central ) 20% ) ) 0
Claims on Foreign Government and Central ) 50% ) ) 0
Bank (ECA -3)
g:ﬂ]r(n(sE%li(é)‘rg;;n Government and Central _ 100% ) ) 0
gieﬁlr(n(sE%l AF f);;elgn Government and Central ) 150% ) ) 0
Claims On BIS, IMF, ECB, EC and MDB's
recognized by the framework ) 0% . ) 0
gililr(r;s on Other Multilateral Development ) 100% ) ) 0
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 0-1) - 20% - - 0
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 2) - 50% - - 0
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 3-6) - 100% - - 0
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 7) - 150% - - 0
gzgzzc‘;“rggﬁ:ﬁm“ks that meet capital 901,132 901,132 20% | 180,226 434,147 | 153,881
Sal;ig‘ls :&gﬁ?jjgﬁiﬁ;ﬂg do not meet 1776 | 1,776 - 100% - 1,776 1,776
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Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 0-1) - 20% - - -
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 2) - 50% - - -
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 3-6) - 100% - - -
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 7) - 150% - - -
Claims on foreign bank incorporated in
SAARC region operating with a buffer of

. . . - 20% - - -
1% above their respective regulatory capital
requirement
Claims on Domestic Corporates 724,218 724,218 100% 724,218 1,258,558 -
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 0-1) - 20% - - -
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 2) - 50% - - -
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 3-6) - 100% - - -
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 7) - 150% - - -
Regulatory Retail Portfolio (Not Overdue) 1,446,992 181,603 1,265,390 75% 949,042 1,800,665 | 1,299,366
Clal.ms fulfilling all c'rlterlon of regularity 45,646 45,646 100% 45,646 18.500 998,942
retail except granularity
Claims secured by residential properties 534,402 534,402 60% 320,641 560,474 371,212
ClalmsAnot fully secured by residential ) 150% ) ) 4,535
properties
%fgjj:)cured by residential properties 135,229 135,229 100% 135,229 109,750 3,679
Claims secured by Commercial real estate 6,725 6,725 100% 6,725 361,104 373,500
f:ssitdggfi;l;‘rrgge(ft’i‘g;pt for claims secured by |} 4 g5 1,014,880 150% | 1,522,321 170,265 | 176,733
High Risk claims 1,305,328 1,305,328 150% 1,957,993 84,230 451,445
Lending Against Securities (Bonds & Shares) - 100% - 357,962 -
Investments in equity and other capital
instruments of institutions listed in stock 212,852 212,852 100% 212,852 169,632 223,168
exchange
Investments in equity and other capital
instruments of institutions not listed in the 1,083 1,083 100% 1,083 1,083 1,083
stock exchange
Staff loan secured by residential property 40,256 40,256 150% 60,384 12,950 20,244
lztcir;;‘e':“e“’able/ claim on government 31,491 31,491 50% 15,746 16,673 6,142
Cash in transit and other cash items in the ) 0% ) ) )
process of collection ’
Other Assets (as per attachment) 476,971 6,456 470,515 20% 94,103 308,493 42,520
TOTAL (A) 9,440,836 8,232 [ 181,603 | 9,251,001 100% | 6,226,208 7,386,289 | 4,128,225
B. Off Balance Sheet Exposures - 0
Revocable Commitments - 0% - 0
Bills Under Collection - 0% - 0 0
Forward Exchange Contract Liabilities - 10% - 0 0
LC Commitments With Original Maturity ) 20% } 0 0
Upto 6 months domestic counterparty ’
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1) - 20% - 0 0
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2) - 50% - 0 0
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6) - 100% - 0 0
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7) - 150% - 0 0
LC Commitments With Original Maturity ) 50% ) 0 0
Over 6 months domestic counterparty ’
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1) - 20% - 0 0
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Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2) - 50% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6) - 100% - 0 0
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7) - 150% - 0 0
Bid Bond, Performance Bond and Counter

. - 50% - 0 0
guarantee domestic counterparty
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1) - 20% - 0 0
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2) - 50% - 0 0
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6) - 100% - 0 0
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7) - 150% - 0 0
Underwriting commitments - 50% - 0 0
Lendlpg of Bank's Securities or Posting of ) 100% ) 0 0
Securities as collateral
Repurchase Agreements, Assets sale with ) 100% ) 0 0
recourse
Advance Payment Guarantee - 100% -
Financial Guarantee - 100% - 0 0
Acceptances and Endorsements - 100% - 0 0
Unpal'd'pomon of Partly paid shares and ) 100% ) 0 0
Securities
Trrevocable Credit commitments (short term) 45,761 45,761 20% 9,152 45,761 18,900
Irrevocable Credit commitments (long term) 38,762 38,762 50% 19,381 132,421 50,446
Claims on foreign bank incorporated in
SAARC region operating with a buffer of ) 20% ) 0 0
1% above their respective regulatory capital ’
requirement
Other Contingent Liabilities - 100% - 0 0
Unpaid Guarantee Claims - 200% - 0 0
TOTAL (B) 84,523 - - 84,523 28,533 178,182 69,346
X‘I{i“:}s?n‘lﬁ A f&;ﬁig‘; Risk Before 9,525,359 8,232 | 181,603 | 9,335,524 6,254,742 | 7,564,470 | 4,197,571
Adjustments under Pillar 1T
Total RWE for Credit Risk 9,525,359 8,232 [ 181,603 | 9,335,524 6,254,742 7,564,470 | 4,197,571
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b) Operational Risk Amount in '000
Particulars Fiscal Year
2075-76 2076-77 2077-78
Net Interest Income 207,096 215,022 151,021
Commission and Discount Income 29,437 30,677 40,479
Other Operating Income 3,769 8,024 277,841
Exchange Fluctuation Income
Addition/Deduction in Interest Suspense during the period 14,190 47,238 -
Gross income (a) 254,492 301,561 469,341
Alfa (b) 15% 15% 15%
Fixed Percentage of Gross Income [c=(axb)] 38,174 45,234 70,401
Capital Requirement for operational risk (d) (average of c) 51,270
Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 10%) in times (e) 10
Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [f=(dxe)] 512,697
Pilllar I Adjustments
If Gross Income for the last three years is negative (6.4 a 8)
Total Credit and Investment (net of Specific Provision) of releted month -
Capital Requirement for Operational Risk (5% of net credit and -
investment)
Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 10%) in times 10
Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure (g) -
Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [h=f+g] 512,697
¢) Market Risk
Currency Ope(rlljg?{s)l tion Exchange Rate Open Position (NRs.) Relevz}t)r;‘;\(lzgzrsl ggsitlon of

INR -
USD -
GBP -
EUR -
THB -
CHF -
AUD -
CAD -
SGD -
JPY -
HKD -
DKK -
SEK -
SAR -
QAR -
AED -
MYR -
KRW -
CNY -
KWD -
BHD -
(a) Total Open Position -
(b) Fixed Percentage 5%
(c) Capital Charge for Market Risk (=a*b)
(d) Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 10%) in times 10

(e) Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure (=cxd)
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d) Non Performing Assets (Gross and Net)

Non Performing Assets Gross Amount | Impairment Allowance Net Amount
Restructured and Rescheduled
Sub-Standard 53,328,016 13,246,371 40,081,645
Doubtful 57,326,626 28,663,313 28,663,313
Bad 16,076,802 16,076,802 -
Total 126,731,444 57,986,486 68,744,958
5.3.4 Compliance with Capital Requirement
Inline with NRB Directive 1/078, the following is the status of complaince with capital requirements at Ashad end
2079.
Particulars Requirement Position
Tier I Capital to RWE 6% 18.52%
Tier I and Tier II Capital to RWE 10% 19.69%

5.4 Operating Segment Information
5.4.1 General Information

Finance Co's management has identified its operating segments based on the management of'its branches and offices.
In line with this, 7 different segments are identified based on 7 Provinces of Nepal on geographical separation basis.
The operation, risk, transactions, etc. are more inclined on similiar manner on a particular state. All the related income
and expenses of such segments are presented in the segment information. Equity, staff bonus, NFRS adjustments
and income tax are not segregated and are included in central account. Intra-segment transactions are eliminated.

Finance Co. does not have presence in Province 2 and Karnali province, hence, it is not reported.
In general, the products that derive revenue is classified in the following manner.

i)  Consumer Financeing: Revenue generated by serving individual consumer is categorized under this product.

This includes loans and deposit from individual customer.

ii)  Corporate Financeing: Revenue generated from customer other than consumer is categorized under this product.
This includes loan and deposit.
iii) Treasury: Revenue generated by way of making investment in government securities, corporate bonds, mutual

fund units, shares etc. are grouped under this product.

iv) Others: Other revenue are included in this product and includes operational service fees, locker, guarantee

commission, etc.

71




o
o
h=
E
—
©
[}
c
©
£
[N
©
[}
=
.8
o
o

% (R e vz fates

S88 ILY T68 L TSO'LOELYT S0Z°900°021 886'FV1°8F8 €ET°9L6°T6V9 90S°LE0°S8T sanINIqery Judwdag
pS0‘SLS 60T 6 HIYIS8IY T6T°S98VEE | SE9°LOL 6T IEPLOE9IBE L €55°088°6EY §)9sSY Judm3dg
€10°620°6€1 698°T19L°6 16+°176°L £68°919°L €P0°€10°601 LIL'SILY §39ssV Jo judunaredwy
08 SHS 1HS°1 818°9L0°T1 LEOTOE T 9r0°68C €ET T61°686°C8T‘1 9L T68°S8 srerodio)
TLIP80'SEE’S PET0ET9ET 891°0L°16 TH6'SS8YIL 690°6¥1°€61°Y 6SLYY1°661 Iownsuo)
TI0°0€9°9L8°9 |- TSO°LOE LYY S02°900°0Z1 886°vY1°8H8 19TPET9LY'S |- 90S°LE0°S8T nsodaq
1¥8°SS'81€C €20°0LY'¥1T L68'8E]TET TI6°SH6' 78 SIL'9¥0°089°1 €6T°157°901 drerodio)
177°085°60C°¢ LTEETFELT P1¥°€59C9 PLO'LETO8Y I8L°€T0°1€TT SP6° 17€°79C Jlownsuo)
T8TEETBTS'S |- 0SE°€68°L8E TIET6¥°S6T 988°€80°S9S | 96V 0LOTIGE |- 8€T°€65°89€ sueo
- quuﬁ r_m&u.COE _NCOHNE huﬁo

poyjowr A3nbo Jursn 10J pAUNOIoE )eI0SSE JO SSO] 10 JyoId Yy ul 3saroyul s Anuyg
1ST°980°€01 (IrL°60TvT) (80°T66°L) (I19°L8ET) 861°S00°EET (LYS‘6TH°9) (ssoppyoad judwdag
9r9°162°0€ SSHI01°T 8069T1°1 ¥6€°0S9 SET1TH'vT ¥SL166°T uonezniowe pue uoneroarda
€19%00°65C - 980°68L €T 6S1°€06°01 €€1°978°ET 76£°886°081 - £b8°‘LoT 61 INUIAM JSAINUI JON
£€90°50%°0CS L61TY801 610458°8 T9T016°LS €79°96L°8TH I¥6° 10071 sasuadxa 1sa101u]
9L9°60%°69L €8T°1€91C 8LI°LSL61 S6£°9€L°18 SE0°$8L609 ¥8L66¥€E awIooUT 1SaIU]
LOETILSTI8 - 0v8°6¥1°8T TIS‘TS8°0T EPI‘SIE'SS TEK090°TH9 - I8€°€61°9€ INUIAM JON
- SONUIAI JUSWSISINNU]
LOE'TLSTIS 0t8°6¥1°8¢C T1sTs80t EP1°G1€°68 TEF090°TH9 18€€61°9¢ SISWOISNO [BUINXS WOL) NUSAY

[elor, pajedoffeun JSM ae euwrey| urquin Djepuen newsegq YSIpeAl 1 duisoag sagnanaeq

6,07 PRYSY U0 PIapud 1ed4 dy) .10j uonisod Judwigas pue J[nsaa Judwidds 7'p's

72



M Reliance Finance Limited

(R Feamew wzaww fafwes

543

5.4.4

a)

Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities

i) Basis of accounting for any transactions between reportable segments:
All revenue generated including intra-segment revenue and expenses incurred in particular segment are presented
under segment revenue and expenses. Intra-segment revenue/cost is netted off at Head Office.

ii) Nature of any differences between the measurements of the reportable segment's profits or losses and
the entity's profit or loss before income tax.
There does not exist such difference.

iii) Nature of any differences between the measurements of the reportable segment's assets and the entity's
assets.
There does not exist such difference.

iv) Nature of any changes from prior periods in the measurement methods used to determine reported
segment profit or loss and the effect if any
Previously, segment reporting was not done. In current scenario, segment reporting based on geographical
segment is presented.

v) Nature and effect of any asymmetrical allocations to reportable segments
There is no such allocation.

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

Revenue

Total revenue for reportable segments 812,871,307

Other revenue

Elimination of intersegment revenues

Entity's revenue 812,871,307

b)

Profit or loss

Total profit or loss for reportable segments 103,086,251

Other profit or loss

Elimination of intersegment profit

Unallocated amounts:

NFRS adjustments

Profit before income tax 103,086,251

Assets

Total assets for reportable segments 9,209,575,054

Other assets

Unallocated assets

Entity's assets 9,209,575,054

d)

Liabilities

Total liabilities for reportable segments 7,892,471,885

Other liabilities

Unallocated liabilities

Entity's liabilities 7,892,471,885

5.4.5

Information about product and services

Particulars Amount

Consumer banking

717,974,123

Corporate banking

5,984,130

Treasury

76,977,442

Others

11,935,612
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5.4.6 Information about geographical areas
Revenue from geographical areas are as follows:

Domestic:

Province 1 36,493,381
Madesh -
Bagmati 642,060,432
Gandaki 85,315,143
Lumbini 20,852,512
Karnali 28,149,840
Far West -
Foreign: -
Total 812,871,307

5.4.7 Information about major customers
None of the customer have contribution of 10% of more revenue on total revenue of Finance Company.

Share options and share based payment
Not applicable

Contingent liabilities and capital commitment

Contingent liabilities are:

- apossible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity or

- present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot
be measured with sufficient reliability.

Capital commitment are projected capital expenditure a company commits to spend on long-term assets over a period
of time.

Quantitative information on contingent liabilites and capital commitments are presented in Note 4.28.

Related parties disclosure
Related parties of the Finance Company include key management personnel of the Finance Company.
5.7.1 Key management personnel
Key management personnel include Board of Director of the Finance Company and Chief Executive Officer.
a)  Board of Directors

Board of Directors of the Finance Company comprise the following:

Name Position
Kush Prasad Mally Chairperson
Sur Krishna Vaidya Director
Ravi Krishna Shrestha Director
Tulsi Prasad Baral Director
Upendra Bahadur Karki Director
Sweta Kakshapati Shakya Director
Binod Kumar Tandukar I Director

Mr. Yuja Kumar Bhaila serves as the secretary of Board.
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Allowance and facilities provided to board members
Chairperson of the Board is provided Rs. 7,500 and other board members are provided Rs. 7,000 as meeting fees for

attending the board meetings. Total amount paid as meeting allowance during the year to board members was Rs.
9,68,000.

All board members are provided Rs. 1,500 per month in order to cover expenses related to newspaper and telephone
expenses.

For official travel, members of board are provided travel and daily allowance as per the rules of Finance Company.
Apart from the stated allowance and facilities, other allowance and facilities are not provided to board members.
There has not been any commercial transaction of the Finance Company with its board members.

b)  Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Samaj Prakash Shrestha serves as Act.Chief Executive Officer of the Finance Co. He is provided salary
and allowance and benefits as per contract entered on his appointment. Annual salary and allowances provided
to Mr. Shrestha during the year amounts to Rs. 37,50,598. Vehicle is provided for official purpose only during
office hours.
Finance Company has not entered into any commercial transaction with its CEO.

Merger and acquisition
During the current fiscal year, there has not been any completed merger or acquisition. Finance Co. has not entered into any
such agreeements subsequently also.

Additional disposure of none comsoligated Entity
The Finance Company has no unconsolidated entities.

Events after reporting date

The Finance Co. follows NAS 10 Events After Reporting Period for accounting and reporting of the events that occur after
the reporting period. Finance Co. classifies those events as adjusting and non-adjusting. There are no material events both
adjusting or non-adjusting for the reporting period.

Proposed Distribution (Dividend and Bonus Shares)
The Board of Directors of the finance co. has proposed 6.50% bonus share of Rs.6,84,45,411 and 0.34% of Rs.36,02,390
cash dividend (for tax purpose) of paid up capital vide board meeting dated 26.02.2080.

The proposed dividend is subjected to approval from Nepal Rastra Bank and then the shareholder in the insuring Annual
General Meeting of the company.
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Additional Disclousers: Forbearance/relaxation
. As of Ashad end 2079
Particulars
No.of Customers Amount(NRs.)
Accured Interest Received after Ashad end 2079 till 15 Shrawan 2079 931 13,209,219
Additional 0.3% Loan Loss Provision created on Pass Loan Portfolio 153 186,526
Extensmr.l of moratorium period of loan provided to Industry or Project under N/A N/A
construction
Restructured/Rescheduled Loan with 5% Loan Loss Provision N/A N/A
Enhancement of Working Capital Loan by 20% COVID affected borrowers. N/A N/A
Expiry Date of Additional 20% Working Cpital Loan(COVID Loan) extended for
. . N/A N/A
upto 1 year with 5% provisiong
Expiry Date of Additional 10% Term Loan(COVID Loan) extended for upto 1
. s N/A N/A
year with 5% provisioning
Time Extension provided for repayment of Principal and Interest for upto two N/A N/A
years as per clause 41 of NRB Directives 2
Refinance and Business Continuity
During FY 2078/2079
Particulars
No.of Customers Amount(NRs.)
Refinance Loan N/A N/A
Business Continuity Loan N/A N/A
Subsidized Loan
. During FY 2078/2079
Particulars
No.of Customers Amount(NRs.)
Subsidized Loan 155 58,304,230
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5.13 Major Financial Indicators of Last Five Years
S.N. | Particulars Indicator 2078-79 2077-78| 2076-77| 2075-76| 2074-75
1 | Net profit/total income % 8.75 17.11 15.14 10.57 13.14
2 | Earning per share
Basic earning per share Rs. 6.76 16.33 12.32 8.78 11.83
Diluted earning per share Rs. 6.76 16.33 12.32 8.78 11.83
3 |Market price per share Rs. 310 532 121 126 119
4 |Price/earning ratio Times 45.88 32.58 9.82 14.36 10.06
5 | Dividend or bonus per share Rs. 6.50 15.00 10.00 0.00 0.00
6 |Cash dividend Rs. 0.34 0.79 0.53 6.58 2.63
7  |Interest income/loan and advances % 14.76 12.52 17.01 16.48 16.48
8 |Employee expenses/total operating expenses % 52.55 58.76 58.96 54.24 52.79
9 |Employee expenses/total deposit and % 1.48 1.82 1.60 1.29 1.21
borrowing
10 |Exchange income/total income % 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
11 | Staff bonus/total employee expenses % 10.15 23.33 19.69 20.20 14.08
12 |Net profit/loans and advances % 1.29 3.16 2.48 1.71 2.22
13 |Net profit/total assets % 0.77 2.07 1.61 1.21 1.44
14 |Total loans and advances/total deposit % 80.90 81.59 72.00 84.16 80.32
15 |Total operating expenses/total assets % 2.10 2.51 2.22 1.86 1.79
16 |Capital adequacy ratio
a) Core Capital % 18.52 24.51 23.18 2443 33.93
b) Supplementary Capital % 1.17 1.39 0.80 1.12 1.42
¢) Total Capital Fund % 19.69 25.90 23.98 25.55 35.35
17 [Cash reserve ratio (CRR) % 35.17 35.17 21.48 28.87 36.57
18 |NPAs/total loan and advances % 2.27 2.69 1.10 2.17 1.25
19 |Base rate % 12.19 9.65 11.25 12.34 9.38
20 |Weighted average interest rate spread % 4.44 4.81 4.40 4.90 5.72
21 |Book net worth Rs. 1,317,103 | 1,279,601| 1,087,359| 1,066,935 976,523
22 |Total shares No. 10,530,063 | 9,156,577 8,324,160 8,324,160 8,022,886
23 |Total employees No. 167 162 129 92 88
24 | Others:
Per employee business (Rs. In lakh) % 312.18 274.02 290.64 378.30 339.98
Employee expenses/total income % 12.49 12.19 12.34 8.81 8.62
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Trend Lines Presenting Financial Indicators

Net Profit (Rs. '000) Total Loan & Advances (Rs. '000)
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Head Office: G.P.0.Box: 20136, BJ Bhawan, Pradarshani Marg, Kathmandu, Tel: Tel: 5361104, 5323117, 5361041, 5361167

Branch Office:

New Road Narayangarh Pokhara Besishahar Kavre Arughat Charali Imadol

Dharma Path, Kathmandu ~ Shahid Chowk Mahendrapool Narayansthan Tole Banepa, Kavre Arughat, Gorkha Charali, Jnapa  Imadol, Lalitpur

Tel: 5345104, 5345105  Ward No.-3, Chitwan Ward No.- 4, Kaski Ward No.- 10, Lamjung 011-663244 064-410172, 410173  023-460102  01-5201704, 5200750

056-596598 061-580983, 573581 Tel.: 066-520815, 520816

Gorkha Manigram Attariya Mahendranagar Kohalpur Damak Birtamode

Gorkha Bazar Tilottama - 05, Rupandehi  Attariya Bazar, Kailali Bhimdatta-4, Kanchanpur  Kohalpur-11 Thana Road, Jhapa Birtamode, Jhapa

064-420278 071-562902 091-550033, 550084 099-520440, 520422 081-542154/542174 023-582602, -582603  023-530743, 530747

Dhangadhi Sitapaila Dhulabari, Jhapa Tandi, Chitwan Bhairahawa Butwal

Dhangadhi Nagarjun-4, Sitapaila Dhulabari, Jhapa 056-593269/593401 Bhairahawa Butwal

091-523462 01- 5233397/ 98 023-564391, 564392 071-590901/590902 071- 590174, 590175

E-mail: info@reliancenepal.com.np | Website: www.reliancenepal.com.np



